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Summary of audit reports

The auditor has expressed his opinion in the audit report. Unconditionally The
financial statements show the financial position performance and cash flow. This
is in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles.

However, the Company’s management classifies certain cost items as selling
expenses without affecting the results of operations and eamnings per share. The
auditor agrees, without extending the audit scope to the presant.

The auditor has expressed his opinion in the audit report. The statements of
financial position, results of operations and cash flows in accordance with gen-
erally accepted accounting principles,

Others Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015 Statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the statements
of changes in shareholders’ equity and the statements of cash flows for the year
ended 31 December 2015, presented as comparative information, audited by
another auditor. The unconditional statement of the report dated February 29,
2016.

The auditor has expressed his opinion in the audit report. The statements of
financial position, results of operations and cash flows in accordance with gen-
erally accepted accounting principles,

Others Statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019
Staterment of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2016
and the statements of changes in shareholders’ equity and the statements of
cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2018, presented as comparative
information, audited by another auditor, The unconditional statement of the report
dated 28 February 2017

The auditor has expressed his opinion in the audit report. The statements of
financial position, results of operations and cash flows in accordance with gen-
enally accepted accounting principles,

Others Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017 Statemnant
of comprehensive income for the years ended 31 December 2017 and the
statements of changes in shareholders' equity and the statements of cash flows
for the year ended December 31, 2016, presented as comparative information,
audited by another auditor. The Company presented its unconditional opinion
as reponted on February 27, 2018,




13.1.2 Summary table of financial statements
RICHY PLACE 2002 PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
Statements of financial position
For the year ended December 31, 2015 - 2017

(Million Baht}
Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated
financial statements financial statements financial statements
31 December 2015 31 December 2016 | 31 December 2017
CURRENT
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 1810 0.41 18.04 0.32 B4.B6 1.40
Temporary investments - nat 082 0.0z
Account Receivable - Subsidiary Account
receivable - net ars 0.09 0.53 0.01 53.59 0.88
Accounts receivable refundable deposit - net 149.00 3.39 145.00 260 145.00 239
Costs of property development for sale - net 408346 9298 4 B6S.67 87.35 561395 92.60
Prepaid construction costs 24.28 215 12553 225 2583 0.43
Advances for material purchases 0.m 00z 543 0N 6.79 on
Deposits for land purchases - 3564 0.64 40,00 0.66
Other current assets 9.79 022 18.31 0.33 215 0.05
Total Current Assets 4,360.24 99.28 521415 93.61 597319 8B.53
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Restricted deposits with banks Investments 508 012 517 009 - -
in subsidiaries = : = - % -
Investment property - net 4,41 0,10 6.66 0a2 8.76 014
Equipment - net 047 0.22 40.89 073 ar.16 061
Intangible asset - net 210 0.05 1.42 0.03 0.7 0.01
Unused asset of operation = = 28366 5.09 =) -
Deferred income tax assels 9.86 022 17.58 032 36.59 080
Other non current assels 0.36 0m Q.77 0.01 6.10 0.10
Total Mon Current Assets 31.29 072 356.15 6.39 80.34 1.47
TOTAL ASSETS 4,391.53 100.00 5,670.30 100.00 6,062.54 100.00
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RICHY PLACE 2002 PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
Statements of financial position (Continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2015 - 2017
(Million Baht)
Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated
financial statements financial statements financial statements
31 December 2015 | 31 December 2016 31 December 2017
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank overdraft 0,96 0.23 1.40 0.03 6.78 011
Bills of exchange 1,129.75 25672 620.00 11.13 5 -
Other payables 10171 232 219.14 393 72343 11.93
Short-term loans from related companies - 10.00 0.8
Long term - Debentures maturing within 1 year . 540.00 969 500.00 825
Loan from financial institutions 511.41 11.64 1.719.93 30.88 1.932.48 nss
Advances received from customers - general
customers-normal person 62.29 1.42 229.40 412
Advances received from customers - related parties 087 002 203 0.08
Accrued expenses 2667 0.61 2085 037
Accrued income fax 412 0.09 1.53 003 2513 0.41
Retentions payable 43.36 099 69.16 124
Other current liabilities 378 0.09 997 0.18 49.11 0.81
Total Current Liabilities 1.894.02 4313 3.446.41 61.87 323694 53.39
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Debentures 240.00 21.40 600.00 10,77 85514 15.75
Employee benefits cbligation 393 0.09 353 0.06 256 0.05
Total Non Current Liabilities 943.93 21.49 603.53 10.83 958.10 15.80
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,837.95 B4.62 I 4,049.94 7270 4,195.05 69.20




RICHY PLACE 2002 PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
Statements of financial position (Continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2015 - 2017
(Million Baht)

Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated

financial statements financial statements | financial statements

31 December 2015 31 December 2016 l 31 December 2017
1

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital - common shares at

Baht 1 par valug

Registered - 985,400,000 shares in year 2015 885.40 2244 7B5.40 1411 128936 21.27
and Registered - 785,399,952 shares in

year 2016

2017 Registered - 1,289,364,969 shares af TB5.40 17.88 7B5.40 14.11 a75.20 16.09

Baht 1 par value 2017 Registered -
975,203,604 shares at Baht 1 par value

Premium on share capital 476.30 10.85 476,30 8.55 53840 B.88
Retained eamings

Appropriated legal resarva 39.08 n.89 3957 0 46.60 0.77
Unappropriated 252.80 a.76 21837 ae2 307.26 5.7
Other components of shareholders'equity- - 0.73 0.01 - -

Total Shareholders’ equity 1.553.58 a35.38 1.520.37 2730 1667.48 30.80
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 4,391.53 100.00 5,570.31 100.00 6,062.54 100.00

SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
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RICHY PLACE 2002 PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
Statements of financial position
For the year ended December 31, 2015 - 2017
(Million Baht)
December31, 2015 December31, 2016 December31, 2017
Unit | Unit o T unit U

Rewvenues from sales of property 507.48 98.75 553.18 8735 1,314.41 99.04
Costs of property sold (337.48) (B5.67) (359.04) (63.19) (871.00) (B5.63)
Gross profit 170.00 33.08 19414 34.16 443,40 3341
Interest income 010 0.02 008 oo

Other income 6.34 123 14.99 264 1272 0.96
Total revenus 51392 100.00 568.25 100.00 1,327.13 100.00
Profit before expenses 176.44 34.33 20020 36.81 45613 34.37
Selling expanses (F2.70) {14.15) (128.04) (22.71) (200.41) {15.10)
Administrative expensas (51.34) (9.99) (40.34) {7.10) (51.79) (3.90)
Total Expenses © (12404)  (2413)  (169.38)  (2981)  (25220)  (19.00)
Profit before financial cost and income tax | 5240 | 1020 | 3082 701 | 20393 | 15.37
Financial costs (4.38) (0.85) (24.08) (4.23) (39.09) (2.95)
Profit before income tax 48.01 9.34 15.75 277 164.684 1242
Income tax (8.41) {1.64) {6.50) {1.14) (31.92) (2.41)
Net profit 3860 .M 9.26 163 13292 10.02
Actuarial gains - - 073 013 - -
Profit for the years ' 39.60 771 999 176 13292 10.02



RICHY PLACE 2002 PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
Statements of Cash Flow
For the year ended December 31, 2015 - 2017

{Million Baht)

December31, 2015 December31, 2016 December31, 2017

Cash flows from operating activities

Income before income tax 4801 1878 164,83

Adjustments to reconcile income before
income tax to net cash provided from

{used in) operating activities: 5.55 5.56 14.52
Provision for employes benefits obligation 0.70 0.33
Realized gain on change in value of
temporary investment (1.56) (0.23)
Interast incoma (0.10) (0.08) (0.52)
Interest expensa 438 24.08 3009
Income from operations before changes 56.99 45.41 217.92
Decrease (increase) In operating assets:
Cost of property development for sales (1,016.48) (985.79) (291.49)
Adjusted trade receivables (increase) decrease - - 5559
Account receivable (3.78) 3.26
Account receivable - deposit for
purchase agreement {149.00) 4,00
Prepaid construction costs 410 {31.25)
Adjusted trade receivables (increase)
decrease - - 21332
Advances for purchases of construction
materials 223 (4.54)
Deposits for land purchases and condominuim 42,00 (35.64)
Other current assats (2.72) (7.49)
Other non - current assets (010} (0.40) (0.07)
Accounts payable 80.19 11747
Advances received from customers 6.36 17117
Adjusted trade receivables (increasa)
decrease - - {20.04)
Accrued expanses {12.11) (6.82)
Fetentions payable 18.42) 25,80
Other current liabilities 345 £.18
Ad|justed provisions for employee benefit
{reversal) - - 0.31
Net cash provided from (used in) operating {997.30) (B98.74) 175.55
Income tax payment (22.03) (17.85) (27.33)
Cash received (paid) employee benefit - : (0.88)
Met cash provided from (used in)

operating activities (1.019.32) (716.59) 147.33



RICHY PLACE 2002 PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
Statements of Cash Flow (continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2015 - 2017

December3i, 2015

Amount

December3i, 2016

Amount
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{Million Baht)

December31, 2017

Amount

Cash flows from investing activities:

Cash paid for investment in subsidiary

Purchase of equipment

Purchase of Intangible asset

Proceeds from sales of equipment

Purchase of investment property

Cash received from the sale of equity or
debt securities of other entities

Cash paid to purchase of equity or debt
securities of other entities

Cash reciept from sale fix assets

Cash receipt from interest incoms

Increase in bank overdraft

Met cash provided from (used In)

investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid
Bank overdrafts and shor-term loans from
financial institutions
Short - term loans from relate paries
Interest paid
Cash Payment for Debentures
Increase in finacial institutions
Repayment for loan from
financial institutions
Cash Advance
Dividend paid

Met cash provided from (used in) financing

activities

MNET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINING OF THE YEARS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF THE YEARS

(1.21)
(2.47)
(0.12)
1,168.15

{1,029.00)

0.10
(0.09)

135.37

(101.32)

39.96

940,00

41087

(372.24)

(28.58)

888.7M

4.76

13.32

18.07

(36.01)
(0.28)

(2.25)
234.45

(233.30)

010
(0.08)

{37.39)

(103.11)

(518.31)

10.00
200.00

1.93&5!:.
(730.16)
143.20;
75301
(0.06)

18.10

18.56

(9.82)
{0.22)

(2.14)

0.48
{0.09)

(11.80)
(195.10)
(614.61)

{(10.00)

BR2.30
(540.00)
1.232.07

{(1,01807)
219.18
{4.98)
(69.22)
66.30

18.56

84.86



Important Financial Ratio

' !
Unit |December 31, 2015 | December 31, 2016 | December 31, 2017

Liquidity Ratio
Liquidity Ratio Times 230 151 185
Quick ratio Times 0.01 0.m 0.03
Liguidity ratio Cash flow ratio Times (1.52) (0:27) 0.05
Turnover ratio of trade receivables Times N/A, NIA MNIA,
Average collection period Day MIA, MNIA MIA,
Inventory tumover Times 01 0.08 017
Average selling time Cay 3zz20 4549 2196
Tumover Ratio Times 548 224 795
Repayment period Day 67 163 46
Cash cycle Day 3153 4386 2150
Profitability Ratio
Gross marngin % 33.50 3510 3341
Cperating margin % 2.06 4,48 14.55
Net profit margin % 7n 163 10.02
aquity % 285 0.60 785
Efﬂcﬁnm:y Ratio I 1 1
Assets % 1.58 08 as
Return on %o 167.37 20.55 81.55
Asset Turnover Times 0.15 [ on 023
Financial Policy Ratio
Debt to equity ratio Times 1.83 2.66 225
Interest rate ratio Times 1185 1.65 522
Compensation Capability Times (7.53) (8.75) B5T7
Dividend payout ratio % 7211 466,70 ars
Per share
Book value per shara Baht 1.98 1.84 1891
Net earnings per share Baht 0.05 0.M 0.4
Fully Diluted [ |
Book valuse per share Baht - - 145
MNet earnings per share Baht - - _ 0.0
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Analysis and Description of Management

Overview of past performance

Richie Place 2002 Public Company Limited (the Company) is a residential real estate development
company. It focuses on developing projects in potential areas and near community centers. Especially
the condominiums along the skytrain line and the junction area. The Company's main revenue is sales.
Home Condominium Both horizontal and wvertical. The Company has completed 5 projects including 1) Le
Rich - Sathupradit Project. 2) Rich Park - Bang Son 3) Rich Park - Tao Poon Project 4) Rich Park - Chao Phraya 5)
The Rich Sathorn-Taksin Project There are also 7 projects under construction: 1) Rich Park - Triple Station 2} The
Rich - Nana 3) The Rich Project Bishome - Sukhumvit 4) The Richville - Ratchaphruek Project 5) The eight Collection
6} The Rich Avenue Project 7) Rich Park - Terminal

Since 2011, the Company has recognized revenue from the sale of immovable property upon the transfer
of ownership to the buyer after the buyer has received the full payment from the purchaser and will record the
cost of sale of the immovable property when the ownership is transferred to the buyer. For real estate projects
under construction. Construction costs Include other related expenses. The Company will recognize the asset
in the cost of property development for sale. When the project is completed and the ownership is transferred,

The Company will recognize the income as mentioned above.

Analysis of the Company's Operating Results - Revenue
The Company's revenue consists of revenue from sales of real estate, interest income and other income.
Revenue from sales of real estate is the main income. The income categories can be classified as follows.

Income structure

Audited financial statements ended 31 December

{Audited) [Ausdited) {Audited)
Million Baht  Percent |msmaam Parcent |Million Baht Percent

Sales 507.48 8E75 55318 | 9735 | 131441 | o9om4

Other income 6.44 1.25 15.06 265 1272 | 096

Total revenues 51382 10000 | 56824 @ 100.00 | 1,327.43 | 100.00
i i ! |

Revenue from the sale of real estate

The Company's sales of real estate for the period of 2015 - 2017 were Baht 507.48 million, Baht 553.18 million
and Baht 1,314.41 million, or 98.75%, 97.35% and 99.04%, respectively.

In year 2016, the company had revenue from property sales of Bath553.18m, an increase of Bath 45.7m or
an increase of 9.01% from the previous year. This was due to the success of the Rich Park-Chao Phraya project.
Finished construction the revenue can be recognized in 2016,

In the year 2017, the Company had revenue from real estate sales of Baht 1,314.41 million, an increase of
761.23% or an increase of 137.61% from the year 2016, as a result of the completion of the The Rich Sathorn-Taksin

Project transfer of ownership and can be recognized in 2017.



Income from sales of real estate by project

Audited financial statements

2016

Million Baht Percant

Revenue from sales of real estate
Condominium
- Le Rich Rama 3 11.86 23 6.20 1.09 125.74 947
- Le Rich Ratchada - Suthisam = £ £ - = -
Le Rich @ Ares station
-Le Rich Sathom - Taksin - - - - w27 56.61
- Rich Park @ Bang Son Station 49.27 859 7224 12.71 3342 2.52
- Rich Park @ Taocpoon Interchange 305.58 59.46 290.53 1593 45.84 345
- Rich Park @ Chao Phraya o4 1462 29317 51,60 30029 2263
Townhome ' 1
- The rich Ratchaphruek 72 142 35,85 6.31 22.70 1.71
- Tha Rich Biz Home Sukhumwit 105 58.34 1135 55.19 _ 8.7 3815 265
Total revenues from sales of real estate 507.48 98.75 55318 L 97.35 1,314.41 20.04
Other income .44 1.25 15.06 265 12.72 096
Total revenues 513.92 100.00 568.24 100.00 1.327.13 100.00

Remark: Other income includes income from breach of contract, change of assignment agreement Rental income and others,

Other income

Other income includes water meter installation fee. Income from breach of contract. Change of transfer
agreement Revenue from breach of contract is the amount of the contract and down payment that the customer has
paid and recognized as income due to breach of contract or the customer fails to comply with the contract. Contract
termination. In the years 2558 - 2560, the Company had other incomes of Baht 6.44 million, Baht 15,06 million and
Baht 12.72 million, or 1.25%. 2.65 and 0.96 percent of total revenues, respectively.

In the year 2016, the Company’'s other income was Baht 1272 million, a decrease of Baht 2.34 million or
15.54% from the same period of last year.

Other income
2016 | 2017

Million Baht Percent |I'|IiHIzon Baht Psrcent

! Water / Electricity meter installation 0.24 3.73 026 1.72 0.58 4.85
2 Income from changing contract 0.06 093 064 4.25 0.66 552
3 Income from breaking contract 2m 4z2.08 a.07 53.58 625 52.30
4 Ditference in return (Condominium) (0.03) {0.46) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5 Intarast 0.10 155 008 0.50 053 4.44
6 QOthers 3.36 5217 6.01 | 3995 3493 32.89

Total 644 | 10000 | 1506 10000 |  11.95 | 10000
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Total Revenue

The Company’s total revenues for the year 2015-2080 were Baht 513.92 million, Baht 568.24 million and Baht
1,327.13 million, respectively.

In 2015, the Company's total revenues decreased by Baht 725.46 million or 58.53% from the same period of
last year due to the decrease in revenue from real estate sales of Baht 721.18 million or decreased A decrease of
58.70% compared to the previous year,

In 2016, the Company's total revenues increased by Baht 54.32 million or 10.57% from the same period of
last year due to an increase in real estate sales of Baht 45.70 million or an increase of 9.01 percent compared to the
previous year.

In 2017, the Company’s total revenue increased by Baht 758.89 million or eguivalent to 133.55% from the same
period of last year due to an increase in real estate sales of Baht 761.23 million. 137.61% compared to the previous

year.

Cost of real estate sales

The cost of real estate sales is Real estate development costs during project development are recognized as
cost in the statement of income when the realization of revenues from the sale of real estate comprises of cost of
sales, salary and welfare of the construction department. Utilities and more

In the years 2015 - 2017, the Company's cost of sales of real estate was 337.47 million baht, 358.04 million
baht and 871 million baht, respectively. The cost of sales of real estate was 66.50%, 64.91% and 66.27%, respectively,
due to the cost of the Rich Sathomn-Taksin project, which was transferred in the year 2017, And the labor cost of
skilled artisans rose.

In 2015, the Company's cost of sales of real estate decreased by Baht 424.50 million or a decrease of 55.71%
from the same pericd of last year due to the decrease in property sales. Therefore, the cost decreases respectively.

In 2018, the Company's cost of sales of real estate increased by Baht 21.57 million or 6.39% from 2015 due
to the cost of the Rich Park-Chao Phraya project. In addition, the cost of construction materials and skilled labor
increased.

In the year 2017, the cost of sales of real estate increased by 511.96 million baht or 142.58% from the same
period of last year. This was due to the cost of the construction of the Rich Sathorn-Taksin preject. And the labor

cost of skilled artisans rose,
Cost of Sale of Real Estate

Cost of Sale of Real Estate 2015 2016 2007

Million Baht  Percent |Million Baht Percent |Million Baht Percent
Cost of project sales 33003 | 9780 | 35495 | 9886 | 86431 | 9930
Salary and Welfare Construction department 5,54 1.64 215 0,60 264 0,30
Utility Bills 0.45 0.13 045 | 0.3 050 | 008
Others revenues 145 0.43 143 | 041 295 034
Total 337.47 | 10000 | 35004 | 10000 | 871.00 | 100.00
Percentage Cost of Sale of Real Estate to Sales Revenue 66.50 64.91 66.27




Cost of sales

Selling expenses include salaries, sales representatives, commission fees, project management
fees. Promotion expenses Specific business tax Cost of ownership transfer Central area charge and other
operating expenses. Commission The commission paid by the company to salespeople and other employees in
the company according to the sales of the company. The commission will be paid on a guarterly basis. Project
Management Fee Sales of projects. The company paid to the company that sold the project. The promotion costs
include advertising costs and exhibition activities. The cost of public space is the cost that the company has to pay
for the common room for the room that is not sold out to the corporate entity of the condominium. Other operating
expenses included office tax and office expenses.

Selling expenses for the period of 2015 - 2017 amounted to Baht 72.70 million, Baht 129.04 million and Baht
200,41 million, respectively, representing a Selling Expense Ratio of 14.33%, 23.30% and 15.25% respectively

In 2015, the Company's selling expenses decreased by Baht 30.01 million or 29.22% from the same period of
last year due to advertising and tax and transfer fee decreased from the previous year.

In 2016, the Company’s selling expenses increased by Baht 56.34 million or 77.50% from the same period of
last year. The main factor comes from the launch of new projects. There are various expenses. The advertising and
branding cost increased by Baht 14 million, the management fee increased by Baht 16 million,

In 2017, the Company's selling expenses increased by Baht 71.37 million or 55.31% from the same period
of last year. The main factor comes from the company's increased ownership transfer. There are various expenses.

Specific business taxes increased by Baht 28.07 million, tax and customs fees increased by Baht 9.01 million.

Selling expenses

Selling expenses 2015 2016 2017
Million Baht Percent  [Million Baht  Percent |Million Baht Percent
Salaries and benefits salespersons 697 9.59 10.41 | 8.06 17.49 873
Selling utilities 1.08 1.48 147 1.14 1.75 087
Tax 0. 043 3.08 239 12.08 6.03
Specific Business Tax 16.26 22ar 1793 13.80 46.00 2206
Commission 3497 5.46 333 2.58 5.56 277
Promotion fee and Sale Promotion 2.66 .66 azy 2.54 6.84 a4
Sales Management 382 525 1615 12.52 55.30 27.58
Advertising costs and exhibition fees. 19.45 26.75 51.09 39.59 2368 11.82
Central and office expenses 547 752 1.14 .88 1.15 057
Other expense 1271 17.48 2147 16.40 30.55 15.25
Tatal selling expenses, F2.q0 100.00 128,04 | 100.00 200.41 100.00
Percentage of Selling Costs to Sales Revenue 1433 I 2333 1525
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Administrative expenses
The Company’s management expenses are staff salaries, benefit and other benefits, utility bills, service charges
and other administrative expenses.

Administrative Expenses

Administrafive expanses 2015 ' 2016 2017

Million Baht Percent |Million Baht Percent |Million Baht Percent
Salaries and benefits 33.80 65.84 2760 B8.41 35.96 E69.43
Litility 0.85 1.85 0.75 1.86 0.76 1.47
Service charge ex. audit fees 4329 8.55 2.76 5.84 220 425
Meeting allowance 1.18 2.30 0.83 2.06 (.84 1.62
Other administrative expenses 11.12 21.66 8.40 20.83 12.03 23.23
Total administrative expenses 51.34 | 10000 4034 | 100.00 51.79 | 100.00
Percentage of administrative expenses to sales revenue. 10,12 7.29 394

In the year 2015-2017, the Company had administrative expenses of Baht 51.34 million, Baht 40.34 million
and Baht 51.79 million. The ratio of administrative expenses to real estate sales was 10.12%, 729% and 3.94%,
respectively.

In 2015, the Company’s administrative expenses decreased from the previous year by Baht 12.98 million or
20.17% due to the decrease in bonus and employee's remuneration and the financial advisory fee decreased from
the previous year.

In 2016, the Company's administrative expenses decreased by Baht 11 million or 21.43% from Baht 255 million
due to the decrease in bonus and staff compensation.

In 2017, the Company's administrative expenses increased by Baht 11.45 million or 28.38% from the year 2016

due to salary Weifare and employee benefits increase proportionately.

Gross margin and gross margin ratio

The Company's gross profit for the year 2015-2017 was Baht 170.01 million, Baht 194.14 million and
Baht 443.41 million, respectively, or a gross margin of 33.08, 35.10 and 33.73, respectively. This is due to
the increase in project development cost per unit. Increased cost of project development is mainly attributable to
the variable cost of construction such as skilled labor, construction materials attributed to the rising competition of

real estate. There are competing selling prices to motivate consumers.

Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

The Company's net profit for the years 2015 - 2017 was 38.60 million baht, 9.26 million baht and 132.81 million
baht, respectively. The net profit margin was 7.71%, 1.63% and 10.01%, raspectively.

In 2015, the net profit was 3960 million baht, ar 7.71% of total revenue the net profit decreased from 2014
due to lower revenue.

In 2018, the net profit is Baht 9.25 million or 1.63% of total revenue. The net profit is lower than that of year
2015 due to the increase in selling expenses from the previous year by 77.50%. The main factor comes from the
company launching new projects. There are various expenses. The advertising and branding cost increased by Baht
14 million, the management fee increased by Baht 16 million.

In 2017 net profit iz 132.91 million baht or 10.01% of total revenue, with net profit increasing from 2016. This
is due to the recognition of revenue from The Rich Sathom-Taksin Project and Rich Park-Chao Phraya Project. The
project has a high proportion of revenue recognition in 2560 or 57.16 percent, or 22.85 percent, respectively, of total

property sales. The financial cost management has improved due to the reduction of financial cost.



Return on equity

In the year 2015-2017, the Company's return on equity was 2.55%, 0.61% and 7.11%, respectively. For 2015,
the return on equity was lower due to the lower profitability of the company. For the year 2016, the return on equity
was lower due to the lower profitability of the company. For the year 2017, the return on equity was increased due

to the increased profit.

Analysis of financial status of the company
Asset

Most of the company’s assets are current assets. Especially, the development cost of real estate projects is
90% of total assets. Project development costs include: 1. Land 2. Project development, both of which are high-value
assets, or approximately 90% of the project development cost.

As at 31 December 2015 - 2017, the Company had total assets of Baht 4,391.53 million, Baht 5,570.31 million
and Baht 6,062.54 million. The rate of increase was 99.25%, 26.84% and 8.84%, respectively, The Company's total
assets increased continuously as a result of new projects being launched.

As of December 31, 2015, the Company had total assets of Baht 4,381.53 million, an increase of Baht 2,187.50
million or an increase of 99.25% from the previous year. This resulted from the increase in real estate development
expenses for the Company.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company had total assets of Baht 5.570.31 million, an increase of Baht 1,178.78
million or an increase of 26.84 percent from the previous year. This is due to the increase in real estate development
expenses due to the business expansion of the Company.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company had total assets of Baht 6,062.54 million, an increase of Baht 49223
million or an increase of 8.84% from the year 2016, as a result of the increase in real estate development expenses
due to the business expansion of the Company.

The Company has no assets, receivables. The Company will recognize income when the condominium unit is

transferred.

Real estate development costs

The cost of real estate sales that occurred prior to the transfer of ownership is included in the cost of real
estate development in the statement of financial position. Real estate sales are recognized in the statement of income
when ownership is transferred to the buyer. The cost of real estate development consisted of land costs, construction
costs, direct expenses, and project development costs, including interest on loans. The cost to be sold is based on
the revenue ratio of each project.

As of December 31, 2015- 2017, the Company’s real estate development costs were Baht 4,083.46 million, Baht
486567 million and Baht 5,613.96 million, representing 92.98%, 87.35% and 92.60% of the Company's total assets,

As of December 31, 2015, the Company's property development cost was Baht 4 083.46 million, an increase
of Baht 2,213.19 million or 118.33% from the previous year. This was due to the transfer of land ownership from the
seller to develop the new project. Rich Park @ Triple Station and The Rich Nana

As of 31 December 2016, the Company's real estate development costs amounted to Baht 486567 million,
an increase of Baht 782.21 million or an increase of 19.16% from the previcus year. This resulted from the transfer
of land ownership from the seller to develop the new project. Rich Park @ Triple Station and The Rich Mana

As of December 31, 2017, the Company's property development cost was Baht 5613.96 million, an increase
of Baht 748.29 million or 15.38% from the same period of the previous year.
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Real estate development costs by project

Project As of As of As of

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2017

Le Rich Rama 3 126.72 310 12283 252 21.30 038
Rich Park @ Bang Son Station 65.88 1.61 21.68 0.45 0.00 0.00
Rich Park @ Taopoon Interchange 308,19 7.55 257,74 530 231.50 412
Rich Park @ Chao Phraya TE8.84 18.83 BE7.87 13.73 433.03 7
Rich Park @ Triple Station B43.72 20,66 732.00 15.04 1.954.86 34.82
The Rich Sathorn - Taksin 4B68.75 11.48 1.111.14 2284 777.89 13.86
The Rich Mana 1.022.9 25.05 1.082.40 2225 1.132.13 2017
The Rich Avenue - - - - 226.96 4.04
The 8 Caollection - - 91,62 1.88 a5.77 1.1
Richville - Ratchaphruek 206.28 5.05 197.45 4,08 184.78 329
The Rich Biz Home Sukumvit 105 27217 6.67 24558 5.05 188.61 3.36
Rich Park Tarminal 33536 6.88 366.48 653
Srinakarin phase 2 - - - . 0.65 0.01
Total cost of real estate development 4,083.46 100.00 | 4,865.67 | 100.00 I 561396 I 100,00

Advance payment for construction

The company has paid construction costs to the contractor for construction. As at 31 December 2015, 2016,
2560, the Company paid construction expenses of Baht 94.28 million, Baht 125.53 million, Baht 25.83 million, or 2.15%,
2.25%. And 0.43 percent of total assets, respectively.

As of 31 December 2015, the Company had advance payment for construction of Baht 94.28 million, a decrease
of Baht 4.08 million or 4.16% from the previous year. Rich Park @Chao Phraya and Project, The Rich Sathom - Taksin

As of December 31, 2016, the company had advance payment for construction of Baht 12553 million,
an increase of Baht 31.25 million or 33.16% from the year 2015 due to the Rich Park @ Triple Station project,
Construction increased in 2016

As of December 31, 2017, the Company had advance payment for construction of Baht 25.83 million,
a decrease of Baht 99.70 million or 79.42% from the year 2018, as a result of the advance payment for
the construction works. The Rich Sathomn - Taksin And Rich Park @ Triple Station.

Deposit of land

The Company paid a deposit of land for the land to be used as land for the Company's projects. As at 31
December 2017, the Company paid a deposit of 40.00 million baht, equivalent to 0.66% of total assets,

As of 31 December 2015, the Company did not pay any deposit of land.

As of 31 December 2016, the Company paid land rental fee for the new project of the Company, which is in
the process of studying the project for further development, amounting to 35.64 million baht.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company paid a deposit for the new project of the Company, which is in the
process of continuing the development of the project of Baht 40.00 millicn,

Equipment

Eqguipment includes office equipment. Office Furnishings Computer equipment, vehicles, etc. are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation. As of 31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017, the Company had net equipment of Baht
9.47 million, Baht 40.89 million and Baht 37.16 million, respectively.
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As of December 31, 2015, the Company had net equipment amounting to Baht 9.47 million, a decrease of Baht
3.45 million or 26.70% from the previous year due to the depreciation of fixed assets.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company had net equipment of Baht 40.89 million, an increase of Baht 31.42
million or 331.68% from the previous year.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company had net equipment of Baht 37.16 million, a decrease of Baht 3.73
million or 9.11% from the same period of last year due to the depreciation of fixed assets.

Debt

The Company's total liabilities are 1) loans from financial institutions. (Both revolving and non-renewable) and
2) loans from other persons. In some years, the Company will have a ratic of current liabilities to total liabilities.
It will change significantly. However, the Company will manage its liabilities in accordance with the loan agreement.
For efficiency in managing cash flow of the business.

Az of December 31, 2015, 2016 and 2017, the Company had total liabilities of Baht 2,837.95 million, Baht
4,049.95 million and Baht 4,195.06 million, representing an increase of 42.¥1% from the previous year and 3.58%
as of December 31, 2015, the Company had total liabilities of Baht 2,837.95 million, an increase of Baht 2,176.45
million from the year 2014, representing an increase of 329.02% from the year 2014, due to the issuance of
promissory notes of Baht 1,130 million, debentures of Baht 240 million. To buy land for new projects and to develop
new projects. The Company also had a pay increase of Baht 14.35 million, which is the payout for the construction
of Rich Park @ Chao Phraya. Financial institutions increased by Baht 38.63 million.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company had total liabilities of Baht 4.049.95 millicn, an increase of Baht 1,211.99
million or 42.71% from the previous year, due to an increase in loans from financial institutions of Baht 1,208.53 million.
167.11 Advances for contributions increased by Baht 25.80 million

As at December 31, 2017, the Company had total liabilities of Baht 4,195.06 million, an increase of Baht 145.11
million or 3.58% from the previous year.

Accounts payable

The Company's principal trade payables are The Company’s trade accounts payable amounted to Baht 101.71
million, Baht 219,13 million and Baht 173.80 million, representing 2.32%, 3.93% and 2.87%, respectively, of liabilities
and shareholders’ equity.

As of December 31, 2015, the Company had an increase in trade accounts payable of Baht 101.71 million,
an increase of Baht 80.19 million or 372.63% from the previous year. The increase was due to the creditor of the
construction of Rich Park @ Chao Phraya.

As of December 31, 2019, the Company had an increase in trade accounts payable of Baht 219.13 million, an
increase of Baht 117.42 million or 115.45% from that of the year 2011. The increased creditor was the payment for
the construction of Rich Park & Trip. Pleasant Station The Rich @ Sathom - Taksin

As at of December 2017, the Company had a decrease in trade accounts payable from the year 2019 of Baht
45,33 million or 20.69%, which was decreased due to the completion of the The Rich Sathon-Taksin Project in 2017.

Long-term loans
Long-term loans are loans from financial institutions for the development of the Company's projects. And
debentures over 1 year
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Long-term loans

As of [ As of As of
December 31, 2015 | December 31, 2016 December 31, 2017

Million Baht Percent |Million Baht Percent  |Million Baht Percent

Long-term |oans due within 1 year - - -

Loans fram financial institutions - net 511.41 100,00 1,719.93 100.00 1.753.93 100,00
Total 51141 | 10000 @ 171998 | 10000 @ 175393 | 100.00

As of December 31, 2015, the Company had long-term loans of Baht 511.41 million, an increase of Baht 38.63
million or an increase of B.17 percent from the previous year. This was due to an increase in loans from financial
institutions used in the development. Projects

As of December 31, 2016, the Company had long-term loans of Baht 1,719.893 million, an increase of Baht
1.208.52 million or an increase of 236.31% from the previous year. This was due to an increase in loans from financial
institutions used in the development. New projects are increasing.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company had long-term loans of Baht 1,753.93 million, an increase of Baht
34.00 millicn or an increase of Baht 1.98 from the year 2016. This was an increase in loans from financial institutions

used in the development. New projects are increasing.

Loans from related parties

Loans borrowed by the Company from related parties The Company is a debtor and the Company has different
interest payments,

As of 31 December 2015, the Company has no loans from related parties.

As of 31 December 2016, the Company had a loan of Baht 10.00 million from a related party, at a rate of
4.30% per annum, as a loan for normal operation. Due on 10 February 2017

As of December 31, 2017, the Company had no loans from related parties.

Advance payment from customer - Guest

The money received by the company from the buyer before the transfer date, such as the deposit and the
contract. It is recorded as advance receipt from the customer. The deposit and contract amount is 5-10% of the
selling price, which depends on the policy of each project.

As of December 31, 2015, the Company had advance payment from customers - the general public was Baht
62.29 million, an increase of Baht 8.38 million or 15.55% from the previous year. Contract and down payment Increased
from the project has not yet transferred. |s the project Rich Park @ Chao Phraya, The Rich - Sathom Taksin project.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company received advance payment from customers - the general public
was Baht 229.40 million, an increase of Baht 167.11 million or Baht 268.00 from 2015. Contract and down payment
Increased from the project has not yet transferred. |s the project The Rich - Sathomn Taksin, Rich Park @ Triple Station,
The Rich @ Nana, which will begin to transfer ownership in the year. 2017,2018,2019 respectively.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company received advance payment from customers - the general public was
Baht 473.26 million, an increase of Baht 243.86 million from the same period of last year or an increase of 106.30%.
Contract and down payment Increased from the project has not yet transferred. Is the project The Rich - Sathorn
Taksin, Rich Park @ Triple Station, The Rich @ Nana, which will begin to transfer ownership in the year. 2017, 20182019
respectively.
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Advance received from customers - related parties

As of December 31, 2015, the Company had advance payment from customers - related persons amounting
to Baht 0.97 million, a decrease of Baht 2.02 million or 67.56% from the year 2014. Due to the transfer of ownership
of Rich Park Chao Phraya in 2015

As of December 31, 2016, the Company received advances from customers - related parties amounting to
Baht 5.03 millien, an increase of Baht 4.06 million or an increase of 418.30% from that of fiscal year 2558 from The
Rich Sathorn-Taksin and The Risks. @ Nana, Rich Park @ Triple Station

As of December 31, 2017, no advance received from customers - related parties.

Shareholders’ Equity and Return on Equity

As of December 31, 2015, and 2018, the Company's shareholders' eguity was Baht 1,553.58 million, Baht
1.520.37 million and Baht 1.867.48 million, respectively, accounting for 35.38% and 27.29%, respectively. And share
holders ‘equity, respectively, increase in shareholders’ equity. This is due to the increase in net profit of the year and
the increase in the Company’s capital.

As of December 31, 2015, shareholders’ equity increased by Baht 11.04 million or 0.72% from the year 2014
due to the Company paying dividends to stock dividend and cash to shargholders on May 29, 2015 at the rate of
Baht 0.14 per share.

Az of December 31, 2016, shareholders’ equity decreased by Baht 33.21 million or a decrease of 2.14% from
the previous year due to the Company paying a cash dividend of Baht 0.055 per share to the shareholders on May
25, 2016

As at 31 December 2017, shareholders’ equity increased by Baht 347.11 million or a decrease of 22.83 percent
from the year 2016 due to the Company paying cash dividend of 0.0063 baht per share to the shareholders on May
25, 2617

Liquidity Analysis
(Unit: Million Baht)

2015 | 2016 2017

Cash flow from operating activities (1,019.32) (716.59) | 147.33
Cash flow from investing activities 135.36 ‘ {37.39) (11.81)
Cash flow from financing activities 888.71 | 75391 | (69.22)
Net Increase (Decrease) 4.75 (0.07) 66.30

Cash flow from operating activities

The Company's cash flow from operating activities in the year 2015-2017 was Baht 1,019.32 million, Baht
T16.59 million and Baht 147.33 million, respectively.

In 2015, the Company's cash flow from operating activities amounted to Baht 1,019.32 million due to the
Company has paid the land deposit of Baht 221.99 million.

In 2016, the Company's cash flow from operating activities amounted to Baht 716.59 million due to
the company's investment in the development of new real estate projects namely The Rich @ Sathorn-Taksin, Rich
Park & Trich. Apolio Station In addition, the Company spent Baht 35.64 million in the ordinary course of business.

In 2017, the Company's cash flow from operating activities increased by Baht 147.33 million. As a result, the
company has sold debt-free projects. The company's cash flow came in at a high level compared to 2016 and 2015



Cash flow used in investing activities

In 2015, the Company's cash flow used in investing activities was Baht 135.36 million, due to the Company's
short-term investments to be used to purchase land to develop new projects.

In 20186, the Company had cash flow used in investing activities amounting to Baht 37.39 million because the
Company sold the short-term investment to purchase equipment and invest in subsidiaries.

In the year 2017, the Company had cash flow used in investing activities amounting to Baht 11.81 million
because the Company sold the short-term investment to purchase equipment and invest in subsidiaries.

Cash flow from financing activities

In 2558 The Company had cash flow from financing activities amounting to Baht 888.71 million because the
Company issued promissory notes of Baht 130 million and issued debentures of Baht 840.00 million.

In 2018, the Company's cash flow came from financing activities of Baht 753.91 million, as the Company had
issued promissory notes of Baht 620 million and issued debentures of Baht 1,140.00 million for the development of
existing projects and new projects 2016.

In 2017, the Company had cash flow from financing activities amounting to Baht 89.22 millien due to the
issuance of debentures of Baht 862.3 million for the development of existing projects and the addition of new projects
in 2017 and for debt repayment, Debentures due 2017,

Total debt to equity ratio

In 2015, the debt to equity ratio was 1.83x. The debt-to-equity ratio was 0.93x, an increase of 0.62x% from the
previous year, due to the issuance of Bt 1,130 mn of promisscry notes. And debentures worth Bi240mn, resulting in
higher debt and interest expenses,

In 2016, the debt to eqguity ratic was 2.686x. The company had a debt-to-equity ratic of 1.88x, due to the
issuance of promissory notes of Bt 620 mn and debentures of Bt 1.140 mn. Increased liabilities and interest
In the year 2017, the debt to equity ratio was 225 times. The Company had a debt-to-equity ratio of 1.82 times,
due to the issuance of additional debentures in 2017 amounting to Baht 8623 million. Debt repayment from project
recognized revenue in year The company has a debt and interest burden lower than 2016.

Remuneration of auditors

In the fiscal year 2015, the Company paid audit fee to the auditor of Karin Audit Co., Ltd. amounting to Baht
854,176. In 2016, the Company entered into an agreement with Karin Audit Limited fee is 950,000 baht and in 2017,
the service fee is 1,185,000 baht. There is no other service fee payable to the auditor,
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Key factors and influences that may affect future financial position and performance.

Risk factors affect the financial position is still affected by the economic situation. Interest rate Affects housing
needs. Both positive factors supporting business growth or negative factors slow down business. According to the
direction of the Bank of Thailand's monetary policy. Under current economic and political conditions, interest rates
may remain low. This will support the real estate business.

Land acquisition projects tend to have more risk factors for project development, such as the Metro line,
government projects, or near transportation to the city. This has a significant impact on the cost of property
.development. The slowdown in consumer purchasing decisions, especially in the market in Petchkasem.

And other factors. For example, the rising cost of doing business, such as labor costs. Construction materials
Fuel prices, transportation costs may affect the delivery of contractors. All of the property development. Although
some of the risk factors have affected the real estate business in 2017, there are also factors supporting the business
such as reducing interest rates. The decline was in line with the tightening of mortgage lending rates. More customers
are scrutinized. As a result, no bubbles in the real estate market. The entrepreneur has a management strategy with
regard to efficiency. Mere planning As a result, the lower financial cost is good for the operation. The market is much
more demanding.

On February 28, 2017, the Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 1/2560 resclved to pay dividends in cash and stock
dividend of Baht 4.97 million, at the rate of Baht 0.0063 per share and stock dividend at the rate of Baht 32.72 per
share. Million shares at a rate 24 existing shares 1 new stock dividend, par value of Baht 1 per share, totaling Baht
32.72 million and approval of the issuance. The first and second warrants (W1) and the second warrants (W2) will
be offered to the shareholders who subscribe. The Company will receive 314.16 new ordinary shares at the ratio of
1 new share to 2 warrants. RICHY-W1 and RICHY-W2 are free of charge. , Approved the increase of the Company’s
registered share capital of Baht 503.97 million, with a par value of Baht 1 from Baht 785.40 million to Baht 1,289.36
million, divided into 1289.368 million ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 1 and amendment of Clause 4 of the

Memorandum of Association of the Company. To comply with the increase of the Company’s registered capital.



Independent Auditor's Report

To the Sharcholders of Richy Place 2002 Public Company Limited

Opinion

I have audited the financial statements of Richy Place 2002 Public Company Limited and its subsidiary, which
comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial position and as at December 31, 2017, and the
related consolidated and separate statements of comprehensive income, changes in sharcholders™ equity and
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Richy Place 2002 Public Company Limited and its subsidiary and
Richy Place 2002 Public Company Limited as at December 31, 2017, their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of my report. | am independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants as issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions under the Royal Patronage of
His Majesty the King as relevant to my audit of the consolidated financial statements, and I have fulfilled my
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. [ believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in my audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
my audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and [ do not

provide a separate opinion on these matlers,
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The Company has deposit of the purchase and sales agreement with non - related company since 2015, then
the Company has cancelled the contract and filed a lawsuit against the seller in relation to refund the deposit
with interest rate 7.50% per annum and the seller has against to Civil Court, the seller claim that they
followed by the contract they did not breach agreement, once the buyer breach agreement the seller can

cancel the contract and keep all the deposit that buyer provided

And the seller has not to refund amends by buyer’s request. Furthermore seller has filed a lawsuit against for
the amends from buyer that buyer breach the agreement amount of Baht 144.20 million with interest rate
7.50% per annum. The Company has not estimated obligated that might occur from this case in the financial
statement, Currently the case is under consideration at court. The consideration of allowance for doubtful of
this deposit and the estimation obligation might occur if the Company loses the lawsuit will have significant
for auditing. Because amount of deposit account as December 31, 2017, is of Baht 145 million that have a
significant with consolidated financial statement, was caleulated to 2.39% of total assets that not sure that
the Company would receive back and not sure about the damage that may happen from this case.
The method of my auditing including consideration financial position and the expect amount will be
received from seller for that deposit; require the lawyer confirmation's opinion, and lawyer consultation of

audit firm.

Inventory (Cost of property developing for sale) and allowance for decreasing of inventory valuation
The consideration of property developing cost is the significant judgmental which effects to inventory
valuation in statement of financial position and gain recognition when occur the sale transactions.
Moreover, the net realizable value of inventory requires management to make subjective judgement and
estimates. It’'s the significant to auditing because of as at December 31, 2017, inventory amounting to Baht
of 5,613.96 million, by 92.60% of total assets, so | focused on this area.

The audit procedure are included test of transaction cost increasing by check with accounting evident such
as invoices, interest capitalized, evaluate and test sale pricing and discount, subsequence sale and discount,

and also site survey to ensured that inventory physical are not abandoned and continuing construction.



Other

The financial statements of Richy Place 2002 Public Company Limited, which comprise statements of
financial position and as at 31 December 2016, and the related statements of comprehensive income,
changes in sharcholders’ equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2016, which have been
presented her with for comparative purposes were audited by another auditor in my firm, whose report dated

on February 28, 2017 expressed an unqualified opinion,

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the information included in
annual report of the Group, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon. The
annual report of the Group is expected to be made available to me after the date of this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and 1 do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When 1 read the annual report of the Group, if I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, [ am

required to communicate the matter to those charged with govemance for correction of the misstatement.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstaternent,

whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or

has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with govemance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, I exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 1 also:

® [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

® (Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying %\k

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



®  (Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. | am responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. [ remain solely responsible for my audit

opinion,

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that I identify during my audit,

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters

that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, | determine that a matter
should not be communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably

be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Mr. Jadesada Hungsapruek

Gl )

(Mr. Jadesada Hungsapruck)
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 3759

Karin Audit Company Limited
Bangkok

February 27, 2018



M RICHY

Emhm&xmg
Statements of Financial Position
RICHY PLACE 2002 PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
AS AT DECEMBER 31,2017
{Unit:Baht)
Consolidated Separate
Minancial statements fimaneial statements

Notes December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 December 21,2017 December 31, 2016

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash cquivalents 5 B4 864243 18,564 514 23,307 483 18,304,814
Trade and other current receivablas & 274,366,868 329.916,929 273,318,133 329.326,175
Short-term loans 16.2 - - 194, 646 400 338,640 943
Inventorics 7 5,013,957 9938 4 865,672929 5,247 476,231 4,530,307,194

Tatal Current Assets 5.973,194, 109 5,214,154,672 5,798,748,247 5.216,579.126

MON - CURRENT ASSETS

Investments in subsidiary B - - 30,090,970 249,925
Investment property 9 8,768,126 190,323,577 8,768,126 290,328,577
Property, plant and equipment {1] 17,162,607 40,889 649 31,017,421 3B, 346,223
Cher imangible assets 11 710,172 1,419,148 10,172 1419148
Deflerred tax assels 12 36,596,671 17,576,936 16,596,671 17,576,936
Other non-current assets 13 6,108,684 5943628 6,007 984 5,853,628
Taotal Non - Current Assets B9, 346,260 356,157 938 113,191,344 353,774,437
TOTAL ASSETS 6,062 540 36% 3570312,610 5,911,939,591 5,570,353,563

The accompanying notes form an intergral part of these financial statemeants.



Statements of Financial Position (Continued)

RICHY PLACE 2002 PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
AS AT DECEMBER 312017

(Uit B

Consolidated

financial statements

Separate

Mimancial statements

MNotes December 31, 2007 December 31, 2016

December 31, 2007

December 31, 2006

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Hank overdrafis and shor-term bomowings

from financial institutions 14 6,788,786 621,400,411 6,TEE, TS 621,403,611
Trache wil etlver current payabics 723,430,867 484 336,741 TI4,764 855 44, (84,706
Current portion of bong-term liabilitics 13 2432 4R 814 1259932727 2,253.926,139 2.250.932.727
Short-term bormowings 162 . 16, 00KL,000 15,931,926 10,000,000
Accreed income tax payable 25,115,992 1,552,897 15,135,992 1,532,897
Chher current lighilities 49,110,168 69,156,952 48,801,635 69,070,789

Total Current Linhilities 3,236,940 627 3,446,4012,928 3.079,440,333 346,024,730
NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term bormowings 15 955,145,338 GO0, 000,000 955,145,338 00,000,000
Mon-curreni porvisions lor employee benefit 17 2964 046 3,533,059 2564046 31,533,659
Total Nen - Current Liabilitics 958,100,384 603,533,659 958,109,384 607,531,659
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,195,059,01 4,049,946, 387 4037548717 4,047, 558,389

The accompanying notes form an intergral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Financial Position (Continued)
RICHY PLACE 2002 PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
AS AT DECEMBER 31,2017
{Unie:Bahi)
Consolidated Separate
financial statemems Mnancial statemems

Motes  December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 December 31,2007 December 31, 2016

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital - comman shares

Authorized capital
2016 Registered - 785,399,982 shares a1 Baht | par value 785,399 982 785,399,952
2017 Registered - 1,289,364, 964 shares a1 Baht | par value 1289 364 965 1,289, 364,969
Issieed and fully paid - up - common shares
2016 Registered - 785,399,982 shares a1 Baht 1 par value 785,399,982 T83,199. 982
2017 Registered - 975,203,604 shares w Baht 1 par value 975,203,604 975,203,604
Premium on share capital 538,406,193 476,302,298 538,406,193 476,302,298
Hetaned eamings
- Approgriated - legal reserve 46,609,000 10,566,000 46,609,000 39,566,000
= Uinappropriated 307,262,561 215,097,743 34070077 219,526,894
Other companents of sharcholders'equily - -
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 1,867 481,158 1.520,366,023 1.874,389.874 1520795174
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 6,062,540, 369 5570312610 5911939591 5,570.353,563

The accompanying notes form an intergral part of these financial statemeants.



Statements of Comprehensive income

RICHY PLACE 2002 PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Revemues from sales

Cowts of sales of goods

Cirmss pofit (Inss)

Other moome

Lhstnbution costs

Adminisimiive expenses

Finance cosis

Frofit (lossh before Income tax expense
Tax expense (income)

Frofit {less) for the year

rher comprehensive income ©

(L'mit;Bahr)

Companents of aiher comprehensive income that will not be reclassifed te profit or loss

Gaines {losses) on remcasurcments of defined benefit plans

Lither camprehestive income (expense) for ihe year , net of fax
Taotal commprehensive inceme (expense] far the year

Baske carnings (loss) per share
Rasic exmings (loss) per share from continuing operations

Dibuted Basic earnings (lass) per share
Basic camnings (bess) per share from cominuing operatbons

Coansolidated Separate
financlal statements Mnancial statements
Motes mi? ralé i s

1314406645 551,179,725 1314406645 S53.170.725
(ET1.000.564) (359,043, 349) (BT 100 BESY (59041 349)

443,405,776 194,126,376 443,405 776 14,136,376

12718985 15061677 11308414 15060677
{2000 406,827 (1290372023 (1945452110 {128,903, 710
(5], 7H8.350) (40,343,407} 150.554,703) (40,043,728}
(M0427) (24084406} (53 B0 984) (24064 415}

164,835,127 15,753,028 171.314.492 16, 182,179
Iz {31.920.030 (6,497, 1Ra) (31,920,130} (6,497, 186)
132914997 9255842 136,394,162 9.684.993

729,724 128

1329145997 120728 1 39,304 362 119728

132914597 0,985,570 138 384,362 10.414,721

| 0156 0.0 o143 oz
26 0.136 o2 0143 0012

The accompanying notes form an intergral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Changes in Shareholders™ Equity

RICHY PLACE 2002 PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMEBER 312017

Consclidated financial statement

4 | paywi Auedwo) anand z00g a%eld Auyoiy

Retained Earnings o
lesued and U
Paid-up Premium on Appropriated o
MNotes Share Capital Share Capital Legal reserve Unappropriated !
Balance as ai Januvary 1, 2016 785,399,982 476,302,298 39,081,000 252,794,173
Davidend payment 20 {43, 197 006
Appropriation for legal reserve - 485,000 (483,000)
Comprehensive income [or the year = - = 9,255,842
Transferred 1o retained carnings - - 720,728
Balance as at December 31, 2016 TRS399.982 476,302 298 39,566,000 219,097,743
Increase shared-capital 18 157,079 596 62,103 895
Crdinary share dividend 20 32,723 626 = - (32,723,626)
Dividend payment 20 = - - [4.953.553)
Appropriation for legal reserve 7,043,000 7043 (40}
Comprehensive income for the vear = % 132914 997
Balunce as at December 31, 2017 975 203,604 538,406,193 46,606 (00 307,262,561

The accompanying notes form an intergral part of these financial statements,
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Statements of Cash Flows

RICHY PLACE 2002 PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2017

Cash Mows from operating activities:

Pradit (boss) before income ax expense

Adjustment af gain (loss} before income tax on cash received (paid)
Adjusied fnance costs
Adjusted interest receive
Adjusied trade receivables (increase) decrease
Adjusted inventory (increase) decrease
Adjusted other assets (increase) decrease
Adjusted trade payable increase (decrease)
Addjusted oiber habilities increase (decrease)
Deprecintion and amortization
Adjusted loss (gain) From fair value adjustment
Adjusied provisions for employee benefit {reversal}
Proodit (loss) for fixed assel disposals

Mt cash fMows provided from (used in) operating
Income tax return {jpay out)
Cash received (paid) employee benelit

Mt cash provided from (used in) operating activities

Cash Mows from Investing actlvities:
Deposits at financial institution with commitment {increase) decrease
Cash paid for investiment in subsidiary
Cash paid 1o purchase property, plant and equipment
Cash paid 1o purchase nvestment in property

Cash reeeived from the sale of equity of debt securities of other entities

Cash paid 1o purchase of equity or debt securities of ather entitics
Cash paid 1o purchase intangible assets

Cash receivedd form loan to subsidiary

Cnh paid for loan from subasdiary

Cash received from sales property, plant and equipment

Imterest received

Nel cash provided from (used In) Investing activities

The accompanying notes form an intergral part of these financial statemeants.
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{Unit:Baht)
Consolidated Separate
Navaneial statements financlal sisfements
Moles FiLlE) 6 w7 s
164,815,127 15.753,028 171,314,492 16,182,179
39,004 427 14,064,416 53,599,984 1064416
{527.704) (75,5400 (15,182,336) (75,5400
55.595.343 (71, 138,6T0) 56,053,323 (TL138.670)
(291 494 167) (985, T8E,905) (280,218,624} (620,121 926)
(70,400} (404, 745) (59, 7001 {314,746)
213,326,163 281,727,123 219616518 281,675,088
(20,046,784} 11,988,712 (20,179,153} 31,652,549
14,529,660 5,560,306 14,520,549 5,560,306
(229,084) - (229.084)
Jloan 334,680 108N 334,680
(20H) * (298]
175552476 (698,208.977) 200,076,564 (332.411,046)
(27.336,770) (17,848,071} (27,336,770} (17.248.071)
(BRO.A24) L (8E0.424) -
147,335 282 {T16.057.048) 171,859,370 (350,259,117
{94,657} 188.367) (94,6571 (B8.367]
(29,841,045) {249,925)
(9,825,370) (26,010,334) {6.214.899) (33,466, 004)
{2,144,598) (22531700 (2,144.598) (2.253.1M)
= 234451007 . 234451017
{233,300,000) & (233,300,000)
(226,135) (284, 748) (226,135) (284,748}
150,000,000 *
(21,350, 825) (338,050, 189)
1000 5 2,00
452,423 06,948 482 423 96,948
(11.508.337) (37.386.595) 120,610,264 (373.143,281)




Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

RICHY PLACE 2002 PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2017

{Univ: Buhr)
Cansolidated Separate
Minancial statements financial siafements
Noles a7 e w7 e

Cash Mows from financing activities:

Cash received {paid) bank overdrafis and short term Joan instilutions (614,614 525) (518,301.754) (614,614,825) (518.311.754)

Cash received lnan from subsidiary 29,000,000 -

Cash received loan fram related parties 10,000,000 ol 10,000,000

Cash pawd for boan from relaed parties { 1, D00 000) y {10,000,000) -

Cash received from debentures £62,300,000 g 862,300,000

Cash paid for desentures {540,000, 000) - { 540,000,000) ¥
1232072 430 1.935,684.070 1,052,072,429 1,938 684,070

Cash receive from financial institutions

Cash paid to pay the loan (LOISETOMT  (TI0NSE960)  (LOIZ079017)  (ThOLMSE961)
Cash received from cagtal shares 219,183,891 200,000,000 219,183,891 00,000,000
Interest expense (195,101 442) (103,108 016) (202,345, 850) (133,409,261
Dividend expense (4,683 553) {43,197,000) {4,983,553) (43,197,000
Met cash provided from (used in) Mnancing activities (69.222.516) 753,908 339 {227.466,9465) 723,607,094
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 646,304 424 44,696 65,002 669 204,696
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINING OF YEAR 5 18,564 814 18,104,118 18,304,814 18,100,118
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EXND OF YEAR 5 84,869,243 18,564,814 83,307 483 18304804
Supplementary disclosures of cash Mows information :
1 Recorded the interest expense as imventoncs cost. 173,127.990 111,736,059 153,287,500 1,348,233
2 Dividend payment 32,723,626 # 32,723,626
283662912 . 183662912 "

3 Transferred investment property 1o invenlonics

The accompanying notes form an intergral part of these financial statements.
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Note 1o Flinancial Statements

RICHY PLACE 2002 PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIESH
DECEMEER 31,2017

I, GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as a limited company under The Civil and Commereial Code of Thailand on |8
November 2002 in the name of Richy Place 2002 Company Limited. The Company changed its stalus to a public
company and registered the change of its name to “Richy Place 2002 Public Company Limited” on 27 Scplember 2013,
The Company is engaged in the development and sale of property and condominiums. The Company’s regisiered office is
located at Tth Floor, 667/15Ataboon Building., Charansanitwong Rd., Bangkoknoi, Bangkok. The Company is 53.62%

owned by members of Ataboonwongs family.
1. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial slatements are prepared in aceordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS") including related
interpretations and guidelines promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professions (FAPY, applicable rules and

regulations of the Thai Securities and Exchange Commission,

The financial statements issued for Thai reporting purpeses are prepared in the Thai language. This English trenslation of

the financial staternents has been prepared for the convenience of readers not conversant with the Thai language.

2.2 Basis of measurement
The financial statemems have been prepared on the historical cost basis (except where otherwise disclosed in the
accounting policies).

2.3 Presentation currency

The financial statements are prepared and presented in Thai Babt All financial information presented in Thai Baht has

been rounded to the nearest thousand or million unless otherwise stated,

2.4 Significant accounting judgment and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TFRS requires management to make judgements, eslimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of asseis, liabilitics, income

and expenses. Actual results may difTer from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised

prospectively.



Deferred tax asset

The company and subsidiarics recognize deferred tax asset when it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. On which deferred tax assets have not been
recognized as the Company's management eonsiders that there is uncerainty whether the Company will have sufficient

future taxable income to utilize such items and/or they might nol be wsed to offset taxable income in the future.

The Company's obligations in respect of post-employment benefits are performed by an independent actuary using the
projected unit credit method. The important actuarial assumplions are discount rate, long-term salary increase rate,
maortality rates, and lurmover rates.
Provision and contingeni liabililies

The company and subsidiaries has contingent liabilities from legal lewsuit. The management considers that the company

and subsidiaries do not have material liabilitics thus there is no provision has been recorded in the financial statements,

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION PREPARATION

The financial statement has been prepared on a historical cost basis, except as otherwise disclosed specifically.

3.1 The consolidated financial statements include the financial stalements of Richy Place 2002 Public Company

Limited and its subsidiary as follows:

Percentage of
{Unit : Baht) direct and indirect
Registered capital holdings (%)

December December December December

Name of Company Type of business Loz 31, 2016 3, 2017 i1, 2016
Richy Development 20016 Co.,Lid. Property
development 30,100,000 250,000 99.97 99.97
for sale

3.2 The consolidated financial statements include only subsidiary which are controlled by Richy Place 2002 Public Company

Limited. Significant inter-transactions and balances have been climinated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Revised accounting standards and financial reporting standards

Revised accounting standards and revised financial reporting standards are effective on | January 2017 which are relevant and

have significant impact to the Company as follows:

TAS 1 {revised 2016) Presentation of financial statements

- Matenality
An entity should not aggregate or disaggregate information in a manner that obscures useful information, Where
items are material, sulficient information must be provided 1o explain the impact on the financial pesition or
performance.

- Disaggregation and subtotals
Line items specified in may nced to be disaggregated where this is relevant to an understanding of the entity’s
financial position or performance. There is also new guidance on the use of sublotals.
Moles
Confirmation that the notes do not need 1o be presented in a particular order.

- OCl arising from investmenis accounted for under the equity method
The share of OC] arising from equity-accounted investmenss is grouped based on whether the items will or will not
subscquently be reclassified to profit or loss. Each group should then be presented as a single line item in the
statement of other comprehensive income.

TAS 34 (revised 2016) Interim financial reporting

The amendments clarify that what is meant by the reference in the standard to “information disclosed elsewhere in the
interim financial report’; entities 1aking advantage of the relief must provide a cross-reference from the interim financial
statements to the location of that information and make the information available to users on the same terms and at the

samie time as the interim financial statements.

The above revised accounting standards and revised financial reporting standards have no significant impact to the

Company.

4,2 Revised accounting standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 which have significant

changes and are relevant 1o the Company. The Company has not early adopted these revised standards as follows:

TAS 7 (revised 2017) Statement of cash flows the amendmenits require additional disclosure of changes in

liabilities arising from financing activities. This includes changes arising from cash and non-cash,



= TAS 12 (revised 2017) Income taxes the amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax where an assel is
measured at fair value and that fair value is below the asset’s tax base. Specifically, the amendments confirm

that:

- A temporary difference exists whenever the carrying amount of an asset is less than its tax base al the end of the
reporting period,

- An enlity can assume that it will recover an amount higher than the carrying amount of an asset to estimate its future
taxable profils.

- Where the tax law restricts the source of taxable profits against which particular types of deferred tax asscts can be
recovered, the recoverability of the deferred tax assets can only be assessed in combination with other deferred tax
asscts of the same type.

- Tax deductions resulting from the reversal of deferred tax assets are excluded from the estimated future taxable

profits.
Management has assessed and considered that the above revised standards will not have a material impact on the
Company.
4.3 Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements relate Lo the Company and its subsidiaries.
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power, directly or
indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. I subsidiaries of the Company uses accounting policies other than those
adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate

adjustments are made to their financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statemenis.

Laosses applicable to non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to non-controlling interests even il doing so

causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.
Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any revenue and expense, are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated

financial statements.
4.4 Revenues and Expense recognition

Revenues from sales of land and houses and condominium units are recognized when the construction is completed and

the ownership is respectively transferred to the buyers.

Other income and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.



M RICHY
Rich in biving

4.5 Cash and cash cquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, cash at banks, and all highly liquid invesiments with an original

maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.
4.6 Current invesiments

Investments in rading securities are stated at fair value. Changes in fair value of these securities are recorded as gains or

losses in the statements of comprehensive income.
4.7 Costs of property development

Costs of property development arc presented at costs or net realizable value whichever is lower. Costs of property
development included land cost, construction costs and expenses direcily related to the development projects, including
interest expense incurred from financing loan interest. These will be amortized to costs of sales based on the percentage

of space sold of cach project.
4.8 Borrowing cosls

Interest expense incurred from loans to finance the acquisition and the development of the project is capitalized as cost
of cach project. The Company will cease the capitalization of interest when the project is completed or suspended until

the further development is resumed.

4.9 Land held for development

Land held for development consists of the cost of land and other related expenses for the acquisition of land bazed on

the actual cost incurred. The value is presented at cost less allowance for impairment (if any).

4,10 Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,

investment propertics are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment (if any).

4.1

Related parties

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by the Company, whether dirccily or

indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in the

Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key management personnel, directors and officers

with authority in the planning and directing the Company's operations,



4.12 Property, plant and equipment

4.13

4.16

Equipment is stated al costs less aceumulated depreciation and allowance for impairment of assets (if any). Cost is

measured by the cash or cash equivalent price of obtaining the asset 1o bring it to the location and condition necessary for
its intended use.

The Campany depreciates equipment by the straight - line method over their estimated useful lives of the assets based on
the segregation of components of assets, if cach part is significant with different useful lives. Estimate useful lives of the

assets are as follows

Building improvement 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Sale Office 25-3 years
Vehicle 5 years

Expenditures [or addition, renewal and beiterment are capitalized. Repair and mainienance costs are recognized as
expenses when incur.

Intangible asseis

Intangible assets (Software) arc stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization of intangible assets is
calculated by reference to their costs on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 3 years.

Impairment

The Company reviewed the estimated value of assets at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. [f any such indication exists, the assel’s recoverable amount is estimated. Impairment loss is determined,
if the book value of an assel exceeds its recoverable amount, and recognized in the statement of income.

Operating Lease

Lease of asset which all risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating lease,
Lease payment under an operating lease is recognized as an expense on a systemalie basis over the lease period.

Employee benefits

Shori-term employment benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses, contribution to the social security and provident fund, are recognised as cxpenses when

incurred on the accrual basis.



M RICHY
Rich in biving

Post-employmeni benefits (Defined benefit plan)

The Company and its subsidiary have obligations in respect of the severance payment it must make to employee upon retirement
under the labour law. The obligations under the defined benefits plan are determined by actuary, using the projected unit credit

method.

Actuarial gains or losses for the computation of post-cmployee benefits are presented in other comprehensive income,

4.17 Income tax

The income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred income taxes. Current and deferred income laxes
are recognized in profit or loss, except o the exient that it relates to items recognized directly in equily or other

comprehensive income.
Curent incame fax

Current income (ax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rales enacled or

substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of earlier years.

Deferved income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized in respeet of lemporary difTerences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities and the amounts corresponding iftems used for income tax computation purpose. Deferred income tax is
measured at the tax rate that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rate

enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized 1o the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed al the end of each reporting

period and reduced to the extent that the related tax benefit will be realized.
4,18 Secgment reporting

Segment results that are reported to the exccutive committee (the chief operating decision maker) include items directly

attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis,

4.19 Dividend payment

Dividend payment is recorded in the financial statements in the year in which they are approved by the Shareholders or

Board of Direclors.

4.20 Basic earnings per share

Basic eamings per share are determined by dividing the income for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares outstanding during the year,
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4.21

4.22

Use of accounting estimales

The preparation of the financial statements requires management 1o make estimates and assumption that affeet the
reporting amounts of revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The actual

result may differ from those estimales.
Provisions for liabilitics and expenses and contingenl asscls

Provisions are recognized in the financial statements when the Company and its subsidiaries have a present legal or consiructive
obligation as a result of past events with probable outflow of resources to settle the obligation and where a reliable estimate of the

amount can be made. The contingent assets will be recognized as separate assets only when the realization is virually certain,

= Critical accounting estimates, assumption judgments and risk management of capital.
Critical accounting estimates, assumption and judgmenis
Allowance for declining values of houses and condominivm wnits and land held for development.

The Company and its subsidiaries treat cost of properly development projects and land held for development as
diminution when the management judges that there have been significant or prolonged declines in the fair value below
cost. The management determines the devaluation of such cost of property development projects and land held for
development based on net realizable value, The determination of what is “significant” and such devaluation requires the

management to exercise judgment,

Equipment and intangible assels

In determining depreciation and amortisation of equipment and intangible assets, the management is required to make

estimates of the useful lives and salvage values of its cquipment and intangible assets and to review estimated useful

lives and salvage values when there is an indication of change.

Impairment of assels

The Company and its subsidiaries consider allowances for impairment of assets when there is an indication that an asset

may be impaired. When there has been a significant decline in the fair values of assets, the management will determine

the estimated recoverable amount.
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Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease, management is required lo use
judgment as to whether significant risk and reward of ownership of the leased assct have been transferred, taking into

consideration the term and condition of the arrangement,
Past-employment benefits under defined benefit plans

The obligation under defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuations.Inherent within these calculations

are assumplions as to discount rates, fulure salary increases, mortality rates and other demographic faclors. In

determining the appropriate discount rate, management selects an interest rate that reflects the current cconomic
situation, The morialily rate is based on publicly available mortality table for the country. Actual post-relirement costs

may ultimately differ from these estimates.

Fair value estimation

The Group estimates fair value for available for sale investments, invesiment property and long-term borrowings from
financial institutions. The different levels of fair value estimation have been defined as follows:

= Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1),

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are observable for the asset or liability, cither directly (that

is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2),
= Inputs for the assed or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3),
The Group disclose the method for assessment the fair value of above detalil in the relate note,

Contritution to Housing Estate Suristic Persons Fund

The Company and its subsidiaries have estimates the contribution to Housing Estate Juristic Persons Fund using the rale
specified by the regulator and the budgeted public utilities cosis as a basis for the calculation,

Litigation

The Company and its subsidiaries have contingent liabilities as a result of litigation. The management has exercised

judgment to assess the results of the litigation and recorded certain provision as at the end ol reporting period. However,
actual results could differ from the estimates.
Deferved tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized based on an assessment of the probability of future taxable income against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. In addition, management’s judgment is required in assessing the impaet of any

legal or economic limils or uncertainties in various lax jurisdictions.
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4,23 Capital risk management

The Company's objectives in the management of capilal is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in

order 1o provide returns for sharcholders and benefits for other siakeholders, and 1o maintain an optimal capital structure

1o reduce the cost of capital. In order 10 maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue new shares or

scll assets 1o reduce debis,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated

Separate

Decemnber 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

Cash 733,217 6014827 732,642 601,752
Cash at banks
- Saving account = T
- Curren! aceount 73,381,482 17,434 218 71,820,357 17,174,293
Chegue on hand 10,754,484 528,769 10,754 484 528,769
Total B4,869,241 18564814 R3,307 483 18,304,814

Deposil at bank - saving bears interest at floating interest rates which are set by banks.
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6. TRADE AND OTHER CURRENT RECEIVABLES
{Unil : Baht)

Consalidated Separate

December 31,2017 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Other current receivables
Deposit 1o be recalled 145,000,000 145,000,000 145,000,000 145,000,000
Advance payment for

construction 25,832,249 125,528,594 25814911 125,472,349
Advance payment for

materials 6,790,845 5,435,932 6,790,845 4,901,423
Deposits for land 40,000,000 35,644,000 40,000,000 35,644,000
Prepaid expenses 44 830,172 8,298,391 44,413,340 2,298,391
Advance 4,680,558 2,346,450 4,068,052 2,346,450

Revenue Department
Debtors 4,081,000 3879454 4,078,541 1,879,454
Other current receivables 3,152,044 3,784,108 3,152,044 3,784,108

Total other current
eIyt 274,366,868 329,916,929 273,318,133 329,326,175

Deposit to be recalled
Depaosit to be recalled amount 145 million baht, paid to purchase the project for development amount 145 million baht.

As the Board of Directors mecting held on July 28,2015 the Board of Dircctors approved the purchase "WORA®
condominium at Sukhumvit Road 49 from Woraluk Property Public Company Limited worth 945 million baht, the price is
reasonable. According to an appraisal by Agency for Real Estate Affairs Co., Ltd. independent appraiser approved by the SEC,
which has assessed the property is worth. 1,131 million baht or 83.55 percent of the appraised value. And the acquisition of
such projects is beneficial to the company. Able 1o enhance the operations of the Company in the future. The company paid at
the amount of 145 million baht on July 29, 2015 for the first time and amount of 650 million baht on the date of transfer
(within Scplember 28, 2015) and the last time is 150 million baht on the date of transfer of ownership by the Aval dated
January 29, 2016. The Company did not transfer ownership and common property from the seller which due on September 25,

2015, due to seller breach the agreement.

Subsequently, on March 31, 2016 the Company filed a lawsuit against the seller in refation to refund the purchasing deposit
for claim of Baht 145 million plus interest at a rate of 7.5% per annum sinee October 6, 2015, and a plaintiff for damages from
deposit payment of Baht 145 million and other damages of 8.87 million. In addition the Company submitted the injunction to
the court 1o order land department to suspense seller to re-sell WORA condominium of 109 rooms which is equivalent to the

claims, or order the seller to submit letier of guarantee to the court, or other judgments by the court.
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On May 25, 2016 the seller submilted petition to the count 10 reject the injunction seller did not breach the agreement, and
buyer did not file the lawsuit against the seller to transfer the property, and duc 1o buyer filed the lawsuit to claim an indemnity

regardless of the ownership of the property.

On May 30, 2016 the seller submitted the deposition and made a counter charge to the Civil court that scller did not breach the
agreement however buyer breach the agreement therefore seller has right to terminate the purchasing agreement and scize the
purchasing deposit, and there is no claim liability to buyer. In addition seller made a courler charge to the Civil court 1o claim
damage from buyer, totaling of Baht 144.2 million plus interest at a rate of 7.5% per annum from the filing date until buyer

paid the claim,

On October 17, 2016 the court investigated the injunction and lound that the seller sold the land and construction, then the
company withdrawn the lawsuil. However the Court fixes the day for setlement of issucs on March 29 and 31, 2017, April 4
and 7, 2017, May 3 and 29, 2017, July 12 and 25, 20017, October |16, 20017, November 20, 2007 , December 15, 20107 |
February 2, 2018 |, the plaintilf and ihe defendant witmessed the westimony. The appointment is scheduled (o be held again on

March 27, 2018,

However, the management and their legal counselor believe that the Company will be refunded full amount purchasing deposit
and claims, and no damages payment to the seller's counter charge therefore the company did not record and provision for
deposit loss.

Deposits for Jand

As al December 31, 2017 deposits for land amounting to Baht 40 Million, it is paid 10 buy the land for the projects

development, the value of contract is amount of Bah 277.20 million

INVYENTORIES (COST OF PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE)

{Unit ; Baht)

Consolidated Separaie
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Work in process 3827824161 3,563,895,.341 JaszsiLnz 3,229 877,839
Cost of interest 313,844,166 208,670,972 292,655,443 207,322,739
[nventories [,472,289.471 1,093,106,616 1, 472,289,471 1,093,106,616
5,613,957 998 4 865,672,929 5,247476,231 4,530,307,194
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Balance as at 1 January
Add Costs of construction
Less Costs of sales
Classily to unused asset of

aperation
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Changes in costs of property development for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:
(Unit : Baht}
Consolidated Scparate
2017 2016 2017 016
4.865,672,929 4,083,460,353 4,530,307,194 4,083.460,353
1,592,753,641 1,420,826,196 1,561,637,609 1,085,460,461
(B44 468 572) (354 950,708) (B44,408,572) (354,950,708)
2 (283,662,912) = (283,662,912)
5,613,957, 998 4.865,672,929 5.247.476,231 4,530,307,194

Balance as at 31 December

Company and its subsidiaries have broughi the land with property 1o mortgage for overdrafi (Noteld) Long-term loans

from bank (Notel 5) and bank guaranice (Nowe28).

As at 2017, company and its subsidiaries have recorded cost of loans to 173.13 million baht {(Separate financial stalement

of 2017: 153.29 million baht) 10 be a cost of the real estate development.

The prajects of the Company are as follow:

MNumber of projects on hand at beginning
of year

Number of the new projects

Number of the end projects

Number of projects on hand al ending of
year

Amount of sale contracts (Million Baht)
Percentage of amounis of sale contracts

per projects on hand

Consalidated

Separale

December 31,2017 December 31, 2016

December 31,2017 December 31, 2016

11 a9 10 9
2 2 2 1
(n Z {1 r
12 I I 10
8,225.79 7,947.88 8,101.34 7.947.88
49,70 47.31 54.18 50.88




INVESMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
{Unit ; Baht)

Percentage of Separale

Holdings (%) Al Cost Dividend

December  December December  December December  December

Type of business 31,2007 31,2016 31,207 31,2016 31,2007 31,2006
Richy Development Real estate
2016 Co., Lid. development for sale 99.97 gog7 30090970 249925 d -

Total investment in subsidiarics

L}
i

30,090,970 249,925

The Buard of Directors meeting No. 5, 2006 held on December 13, 2016, has approved the Company and subsidiary by share
capital of Baht | million with the objective of property development the Company had already paid for the first paid-up
shares in the amount of Baht 0.25 million on December 15, 2016, the date of incorporation,

The board of dircctors meeting resolution of Richy Place 2002 Public Company Limited No. 2,2007 held on May 12, 2017,
has approved the subsidiary to increase share capital by Baht 30,000,000, 100 Baht per share from the existing registered

share capital of Baht 1,000,000 include as registered share capital of Bah 31,000,000,



Assel — Al Cost

Balance as at January 1, 2017
Additions
Trmsler in
Transfer out
As at December 31, 2007

; | ; =
Balance as at January 1, 2017
Depreciation for the year

As al December 31, 2017
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{LInit : Baht)

Diecistions included i ‘ bengive [ .

As at December 31, 2006

Asg al December 31, 2017

Real estate in process

Consolidated /Separate
Club house
Unused assel Total

of operation Lund Building Equipment Club houss Total
283,662,912 4,295,650 2,370,015 = 6,665,605 290,328,577
- - 1,968,598 176,000 2,144,598 2,144,598
{(283,662,912) = ¥ # = (2B1,662,912)
. 4295650 4338613 176,000 £.810,263 8810263
= = (36,154) (5,583} (42,137 (42,137)
= = (36,154} (5,883) (42,137) 42,137}
- 4295650 4,302359 170117 8,768,126 B, 768,126
283,662,912 4,295,650 2370015 = 6,665,665 290,328,577
42,137

1tis a land of club for a project which on the process of construction, to get the benefit from rental income in the future,

Unused assel of operation

A land that company has not specifies the objective to use in the fore.

As al 2017 the company has transfed the unused asset of operation amount of baht 283.66 million to inventories due to

start to develop.



10. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated
" buiking  Offee  Compuier o
improvement equipiment equipment Sales office Vehile Totul
Al Cosl
Dalance as at January 1, 2006 3,009,170 B.R46.807 1,697,163 5,254,547 5000 18,902,697
Additions - 5,680,916 373683 19955733 ’ 36,010,332
Transfer in / (Transfer out) . . - . (5,0000 (5,000}
As at December 31, 2016 3,099,170 14.527,733 2070846 35.210,280 - 54,908,029
Additions 555,739 1930814 125,564 7,113,253 o 0,825,370
‘Tramsfer in / (Transfer out) -
Belance as al December 31, 2007 3,054,909 16,458,547 2.19410 42323533 * 64,733,399
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as January 1, 2016 1,154,438 4,625 871 1,068,372 1,574,731 3,049 9,430,461
Depreciation for the year 619,834 1,856,016 376,776 1,738,342 249 4,591,217
Transfer in £ {Transfer aut) c = * * (3,298} (3,298)
Balance as at December 31, 2016 1778272 6,481,887 1,445,148 4313,073 - 14,018,380
Depreciation for the year 622,681 2.548.203 3774668 10,003,860 4 11,552.412
Transfer in / (Transfer out) - - -
Balance as at December 31, 2017 2400953 0,030,090 1,822816 14,316,933 & 27,570,792
Met book valug.-
As ot December 31, 2016 1,320,558 8,045,846 625608 30,807,207 & 40,889,645
As al December 31, 2017 1,253,956 7,428,457 473,594 28,006,600 - 37,162,607
As at December 31, 2016 4,591,217
As at December 31, 2017 13,522,412
Asal December 31, 2006 2,939,908

As al December 31, 2017 4,673,005
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{Unit ; Baht)
Separate
Building Computer
improvement  Ofes equipment cquipment Sales olfice Vehicle Tatal
Al Cost
Ralance as at January |, 2006 3,009,170 B.846,817 1,697,163 5,254,547 5,000 18,902,697
Additions = 5680916 373,683 27,412,307 * 33,466,906
Transfer m / {Transfer ow) . : = - {5,000) (5,000}
Balance as at December 31, 2016 3,059,170 14,527,733 2070846 32,666,854 = 52,364,003
Additions 555,139 1,855,360 225,564 3,578,236 - 6,214,899
Transfer in / { Transfer out) ¥ - = = -
Balance as at December 31, 2017 3,654,909 16,383,093 2,296,410 16,245,000 - 58,579,502
| _—
Ralance as Tanuary |, 2006 1,158,438 46254871 1,068,372 2,574,731 3,049 9.430.461
Depreciation for the year 619,835 1,856,015 176,776 1,738,342 249 4,391,217
Transfer in / { Transfer out) < 3 . - (3.298) {3,298)
Balance as al December 31, 2016 1,778,273 0,431,886 1,445, 148 4,313,073 = 14,018,350
Depreciation for the year 622,682 2,539,491 177,668 10,003,860 = 13,543,701
I'ransfer in / { Transfer out) - - - ‘ . =
Balance as at December 31, 2017 2. 400,955 9,021,377 1,822,816 14,316,933 - 27,562,081
Net book valuc:
As at December 31, 2016 1,320,897 8,045,847 625,698 28,353,781 = 38,346,223
As at December 11, 2017 1,253,954 7.361,716 473,594 21,928,157 - 31017421
D iitions inctaded in if ¢ S for 1l "
Az at December 31, 2016 4,591,217
As at December 31, 2017 13,543,701
As at December 31, 2016 2,939,908
4,673,005

As at December 31, 2007




Il OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

&

Cost :

Balance as of January |, 2016
Increase / Transler in

Sale / Transfer out

Balance as of December 31, 2016
Increase / Transfer in

Sale / Transfer out

Balance as of December 31, 2017

Accumulated Amortization ;

Balance as of January 1, 2016
Amortization for year

Sale / Transfer out

Balance as of December 31, 2016
Amortization for year

Sale / Transfer out

Balance as of December 31, 2017

Book value:-

Balance as of December 31, 2016

Balance as of December 31, 2017

Balanee as of December 31, 2016

Balance as of December 31, 2017

(Unil : Baht)

Consolidated /Separate

Computer software

3,915,044
284,748

4,199,792
226,135

4,425,927

1LBI1,555
969,089

2,780,644
935,111

3,715,755

1,419,143

710,172

969,089

935,111
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12. DEFERRED EXPENSE
Deferred tax asset as at 31 December 2007 and 2016 are as follows:

(Unit ; Baht)

Consolidated / Separate

December 31,2017 December 31, 2016

Deferred income lax assel 36,596,671 17,576,936

The movements in deferred tax assel as al 31 December 2016 are as follows:

(Uit : Bahi}
Consolidated/ Scparate
Recognised as income (expense)
January 1, Statement of  Sharcholders'  December 31,
2016 neome equity 2016
Deferred income tax asset:
Aadvances received from customers 8,436,544 8,413,660 - 16,870,204
From employee benefits obligation 1,422,674 (715,942) = 706,732
Total 9,859,218 TTTIE - 17,576,936
The movements in deferred tax asset as at 31 December 2017 are as follows:
(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated/ Separate
Recognised as income (expense)
January 1, Statement of Sharcholder”  December 31,
2017 income equity 2007
Deferred income tax asset:
Aadvances received from customers 16,870,204 19,133,658 - 36,003,862
From employee benefils obligation 706,732 (113,923) = 592,809
Total 17,576,936 19,019,715 & 36,596,671




Income tax recognized in the statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

{Unit : Baht}
Consolidated Separate
For the years ended December 31, For the years ended December 31,
2017 2016 2017 2016
Current income tax 50,939,865 14,214,904 50,9319 865 14,214,904
Deferred tax from temporary differences (19,019,735) (7,717,718) (19,019,735) (7,717,718)
Total 31,920,130 6,497,186 31,920,130 6,497,186
Reconciliation of effective tax rale
{Unit : Baht)
Consolidated Separate
2017 2016 2017 2016
Profit (loss) before tax 164,835,126 15,753,030 171,314,491 16,182,180
Tax rate 20% 20% 20%% 20%
Current income lax expense as lax raic 32,967,025 3,150,606 34 262 898 1236436
Mon — deductible expenses / Income item 16,676,967 10,978,468 16,676,967 10,978,468
Non — deductible income / Deductible expenses (17,723,862) (7.631,888) (19,019,735) (7.71 ?.?lﬁl
Income tax expense 31,920,130 6,497,186 31,920,130 6,497,186
The average effective lax rate 19% 41% 19% 40%
. OTHER NON - CURRENT ASSETS
{Unit : Baht}
Consolidated Separate

December 31,2017 December 31, 2016  December 31,2017 December 31, 2016

Deposits at financial

institutionswith commitment 5,269,649 5,174,992 5,269,649 5,174,992
Others 839,035 768,636 738,335 678,636
6,108,684 5,943,628 6,007,984 5,853,628

Deposits at financial institutions with commitment

Fixed deposit account with commercial bank has limitation about usability because it has burden of overdrafi guarantee.

[
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14. BANK OVERDRAFT AND SHORT-TERM BORROWING FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
{Unit : Baht)
Consolidated Separate

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2017 Drecember 31, 2006

Bank Overdralt 6,788,786 1,401,611 6,788,786 1,403,611
Bill of Exchange - 620,000,000 - 620,000,000
Total 6,788,786 621,403,611 6,788,786 621,403,611

BANK OVERDRAFT

The consolidated and separate financial statement as al December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 the Company has bank
overdrafl facility with a bank for Baht 22 million and Baht 12 million. These bear interest at the rate MOR respectively, and

are collateralized by constructions and by fixed deposit.

15, LONG - TERM BORROWINGS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As al December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Campany has borrowings from (inancial institutions as follow:

(Uit ; Baht)
Consolidated Separate

December December December December

31, 2017 i1, 2016 31,2017 31, 2016
Bonds 1,455,145,33R8 1, 10,000, 000 1,455,145338 1, 140,000,000
Loans from financial institutions 1,932 483 814 1,719,932, 727 1,753,926,139 [,719,932,727

3,387.629,152 2,859,932 727 3,200.071,477 2,859,912,727
Current portion of long-term liabilitics
Bonds (500,000,000 ) (540,000,000 (500,000,000 ) (540,00:0,000)

Loans from financial institutions (1,932 483 814)

(1,719.932,727)

(1,753,926,139)

(1,719,932,727)

(2,432,453,814)

(2,259,932,727)

(2,253,926,139)

(2,259,932,727)

055,145,338

GO0, 000,000

055,145,338

600,000,000




BONDS

Resolved to propose to the Extra - Ordinary Sharcholders' Meeting of 2016 On April 25, 2016 1o consider the issuance and

offer of debentures with an aggregate principal amount, al any lime, not is excecding Bath of 3,000 million. By assign

authority to Chief Exccutive to determine or change condition and details that involve with issue and offer for selling for

cach/far each time and assign authority 1o process the necessary things that involve to issue and sell these bonds to complete

by the law.

As at December 31, 2017 the Company with having registered and bond holders® representative debentures as follow:

{Unit : Baht)

Consolidated /Separate

Intcrest rate Term of Outstanding balance
Debenture Issuance Malturity No. of Par Value  per annum interest s al
Mo, Date Date units (Baht}Unit (% pal) payment December 31, 2017
3 Z7Nov 15 26 Nov20 100,000 1,000 550 August and 100,000,000
November
4 21 Dec 15 21 Decl8 300,000 1,000 5.60 Sepiember and 300,000,000
December
5 29 Sep 16 1 Oct 18 200,000 1,000 5.10 March , June, 200,000,000
September and
December
6 | Mar 17 1 Mar 20 334,500 1,000 360 September and 334,500,000
December
7 SAaug 17 DAug 9 527800 1,000 6.25 February , May , 527,800,000
August and
Less deferred expenses fee (7,154,662)
1,455,145,338
Less Current pottion of long term debentures (500,000,000)
Total 955,145,338
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Movements in the bond from institutions for the year ended December 31,2017 and 2016 are as [ollows:
(Unit ;: Baht)
Beginning balance as al January 1, 2007 1, 140,000,000
Add Additional borrowings 862,300,000
Less Repayments (540,000,000)
Ending Balance as at December 31, 2007 1,462,300,000
Financial fee waiting for amortize (7,154,662)
1,455,145,338
Borrowings form financial instilutions
As al December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Company has loans from financial institutions as [ollow:
{Unit : Baht)

Consolidated Separate

December 31,2017 December 31, 2006 December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Loans from financial instilutions 1,933,926,1349 1,719.932.727 1,753,926,139 [,719.932. 727
Financial fec waiting for

amaortization (1,442,325) v = =

1,932,483.814 1,719.912 327 1,753,926,13% 1,719.932,727

Movements in the loans from institutions for the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:
(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated Separate

Beginning balence as at January 1, 2017 1,719.932.727 1.719,932,727

Add Additional borrawings 1,232,072.430 1,052,072,429

Less Repaymenis (1,018,079.018) (1L01R,079.017)

1,933,926,139 1,753,926,139

Financial fee waiting for amortize (1,442,325) -

Ending Balance as at December 31, 2017 1,032,483 814 1,753,926,139

k|



Separate financial statements
As at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Company had unused credit facilities for loans from financial

institutions as follows:
{(Unit : Million Baht)

Dec 31, Dec 31,
Credit facilities Interest rate Repayment 2007 2016
* Baht 376.06 million MLR+(.75% The principal is repayable within 72 months from
{For Construction and Land) P.A the date of signing the agreement (11 April
2012) 375 135
* Bahit 261.50 million MLR % P.A. The principal is repayable within 31 months from
{For Equipment instalment) the date of signing the agreement (21 May 2013) 248 160
* Baht 691.01 million MLR +0.75% The principal is repayable within 72 months from
P.A, the date of signing the agreement (15 November
2013) 361 137
* Baht 858.86 million MLR - 1.00% The principal is repayable within 48 months from
PA. the date of signing the agreement (29 December
2014) 231 647
* Baht 1,450.00 million MLR - 1.50% The principal is repayable within 48 months from
P.A. the date of signing the agreement (19 December
2016) 1414 BE3

All the Company's land for each project has been mortgaged as collaterals for loans with the guarantec of the Company’s

director.

As the loan repayment schedule will be paid as proportionate to real estate sales. The Company therefore presented the loans

from financial institutions as Current Liabilities.
Under the term of the loan agreement, the Company shall maintain Debt to equity ratio is not over than 3.5:1, which is

computed on annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December (D/E means Net intercst bearing debt/Sharcholders'

equity) and shall pay prepayment fee at 2% of the outstanding loan ete.
Subsidi
As al December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the subsidiary had unused credit facilities for loans from financial

institutions as follows:
{Unit : Million Baht)

Dec3l, Dec 31,
Credit facilities Interesi rate Repayment 2017 2016

Baht 588.50 million MLR - 1.50%  The principal is repayable within 4 years from the
{Construction contract + Land) P.A. date of signing the agreement (March 16, 2017) 409
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Al the subsidiary’s land for cach projeet has been morigaged as collaterals for loans and guaranteed by the parent company.

Under the loan agreement Subsidiaries must comply with certain financial conditions, such as:

- The subsidiary shall maintain Debt to equity ratio is nol over than 2:1, which is computed on the financial statement

for the year ended 31 December (D/E means Net interest bearing debt/Shareholders’ equity)

- Shall pay prepayment fee at 3% ol the outstanding loan ete.

Since the terms of the loan agreement are repayable on a percentage basis of the selling price of the transferred goods, the

Company therefore represents the loans from such financial institutions as current liabilities in full amount.

16. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company and subsidiary has some significant accounting transactions with its related partics which basis for exccution of

the transactions might be different from the basis used for transactions with unrelated parties,

Related Parties

Type of Relationship

Richy Development 2016 Co., Lid,
Ms. Apa Ataboonwong

Lt.Gen. Mrs. Samang Thongpan
Ms. Sunee Satatinun

Mr. Somsak Ataboonwong

Mrs. Nongluk Wanathumpong
Mr. Werapol Ataboonwong
Assoe, Prof. Suthat Ratanakuakangwan
Mrs. Supamar Pinsumang

Mrs. Worapha Molarrak

Mrs. Nion Munipirakul

Mrs. Kultamas Nitcharoj

Ms. Pornrapat Aksormwanich

Ms. Jarinee Krongyungyuan

Mr. Pichai Alaboonwong

Ms. Somporn Mewerasom

Mrs. Pimwanree Preansathaporn
Dr. Thanyanon Ratanakuakangwan
Ms. Sathinee Ataboonwong

Mrs. Saranthon Srisoontorn
Alaboon Asset Co,, Lud,

Ataboon Co,, Lid.

K.CS and Associate Co,, Lid.

Subsidiary

Managing director and shareholder
Chairman of Audit Commilice
Direcior and sharcholder

Director and sharcholder

Director and Sharcholder

Director and Shareholder

Director

Sharcholder

Shareholder

Shareholder

Shareholder

Shareholder

Sharcholder

Sharcholder

Sharcholder

Relative audit commitlee

Relative director

Relative shareholder

Management

A related company with joint director
A related company with joint director

A related company with joint director



16.1 Significant transactions with related parties for the year ended December 31,2017 and 2016 are as follows :

{Unil : Thousand Baht}

Consolidated Scparate
Transactions with related parties Pricing policy 017 2016 2017 2016
Ataboon Asset Co., Lid,
Sales office rental expense Market price 11,538 6,465 11,538 6,463
Interest receive
Richy Development 2016 Co., Lid. MLR-5% per
annum = - 14,655 1,348
Head office rental expense
Ataboon Asset Co., Lid. Baht 75,834
per month 910 910 910 q10
Common charge
Ataboon Assct Co., Lid, Baht 60,857
per month T30 730 T30 730
Project Management ¢xpense
KCS and Associate Co., Lid. Munually agreed 7,319 10,486 709 10,486
Interest expense
Richy Development 2016 Co., Lid. 5% per annum - - 934 =
Current employment benefits 8,507 1,757 8,597 1.757
Post - employment benefits 265 424 265 424
Total 8,862 8,181 8,862 8,181

On March 1, 2014, the Company entered into an office rental and service agreement with a related company for a period of
3 years from March 1, 2014 to February 28, 2017, and the Company has renewed the contracl for another 3 years. From

March 1, 2017 to February 29, 2020, the Company paid the monthly rental and service fee at the rate specified in the

agreement.
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16.2 Significant balances with related partics the year ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 are as follows:

(Unit : Baht)
January 1, 2017 Increase Decrease December 31, 2007
Short-term borrowings
Richy Development 2016 Co., Lid.
Principle 337,292,710 21,350,825 { 180,000,000) 178,643,535
Accrued interest 1,348,233 14,654,632 - 16,002,865
318,640,943 36,005,457 {180,000,000) 194,646,400

Company charged interest 1o ils subsidiaries by the same rate with paying loans of capital because it is loans that company
have borrowed for buying the land of subsidiarics,

In 2016, the Company has transferred a contractual right to buy and sell the land to ils subsidiaries with a building and a cost
of project, the company has not pay and recorded this transaction in account “Short-term loans” repayment condition, the

subsidiary will repay to the Company when finished the project development and transfered the ownership to the client.

{Linit : Baht)

Consolidated Separate

December 31,2017 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Trade and other current
payables
Advances received from
customers
Ataboon Assel Co., Liud 404,000 741,000 404,000 741,000
Mrs. Pitchaya Tansod 3,074,232 4,290,653 1074232 4,290,653
3478232 5,031,653 1478232 5,031,653
{Unit : Baht)
Consolidated Separate
December 31,2017 December 31, 2016 December 31, 20017 December 31, 2016
Short-term horrowings
Short-lerm borrowings 1o related - 10,000,000 10,000,000
parlies ‘

Shori-term borrowings and
accrued interest expend 1o
related parties . - 29,932,926 :
. 10,000,000 29,932,926 10,000,000




&

The signilicant movement short-term borrowings for the year ended December 31, 2017 as follows:

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated / Separate
January December
1,2017 Increase Decrease 3,207
Short-term borrowings to related parties

Ataboon Asset Co., Lid. 6,000,000 = (6,000,000) "
Ataboon Co., Lid. 4,000,000 - {4,000,000) g

10, 000, D00 k (10,000,000) =

Short-term borrowing from relate partics amount 2 issues for normal operations of the Company. The interest bears al

the rate of 4.3% p.a. and has maturity date on February 10, 2017. However, the Company has refunded all of the loans.

(Unit : Baht)
Separate
January R December
1,2017 Increase Decrease i, 207
Short-term borrowings and acerued interest expend to refated partics
Richy Development 2016 Co., Lid.

Principle - 29,000,000 29,000,000
Acerued interest - 932,926 932,926
- 29032 926 29,932,926

The Company and subsidiaries mutually agree 1o charge interest rate MLR - 1.5 per annum on borrowings, due in payable on

demand for use in normal operations,
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An independent actuary carried out an evaluation of the Company s obligations for employees® long-term benefits using the Projected

unit eredit method. The Company has provided the provision for crployees® long-term benefits as follows:

The statement of financial position obligations was determined as follows:

Present value of employee benefit obligation unfunded

Movement in the present valuc of the defined benefit obligations:

Provision for employee benefits - beginning

Current service cost and interest cost

Liabilities fell from the payment of employee retirement.
Provision for employee benefits - ending

Actuarial loss recognized in other comprehensive income:

Current service cosl
Interest cost

Total
Principal actuarial assumptions al the reporting:
Discount rate

Average increasing salary rate

Retirement age

{Unit ; Baht)

Consolidated / Separate

31 December 2017

2,964 046

{Linit : Baht)

Consolidated / Separate

31 December 2017

3,533,650
30,811

(830,424)

2,564,046

{Unit ; Baht)

Consolidated / Separate

11 December 2007

292,041
18,770

30811

2007

4.62%
5.00%

55 years



18,

&

SHARE CAPITAL

2017

The Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders held on April 25, 2017 resolved as follows:

Approved of a decrease of capilal from the existing registered capital of 985,400,000 Baht o the new registered capital of
785,399,982 Baht. The Company has registered its decrease of paid-up share capital with the Ministry of Commerce on

May 11,2016

2016

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders held on April 25, 2017 resolved as follows:

Approved the increase of the Company's registered capital for another Baht 503,964,987, divided into 503,964,987 shares
al the par value of Baht 1.00, from the existing registered capital of Baht 785,399,982 to Baht Company’s registered
capital of Baht 1,289,364 969, divided into 1,289 364 969, shares at the par value of Baht 1.00 and the amendment Lo the

Company’s Memorandum of Association so as to reflect the capital increase.
The Company has registered its increase of paid-up share capital with the Ministry of Commerce on May 25, 2017,
Approved the allotment of 503,964,987 shares at the par value of Bahl 1.00, be made as follows

2.1 Consider the allotment of capital increase ordinary shares not more than 157,079,996 shares at the par value of Bah
1.00 1o existing shareholders proportionately to their sharcholding (“Right Offering”), the details of the allotment are

as follows:

2.1.1 The subscription ratio is 5 existing shares to 1 new ordinary share, any fraction will be disregarded. The

offering price is Baht 1.40 per share,

2.1.2 Any unsubscribed shares from the subscription of the existing shareholders (Right Offering) by way ol rights
issue (Unsubscribed Shares) will during the subscription period will be re-allot to the sharehiolders, who wish
to subsecribe such Unsubscribed Shares in cxcess of their entitlement {Excess Rights), in proportion to their

sharcholding at the same offer price.

2.2 Consider the allotment of capital incrcase ordinary shares not more than 157,079,996 shares at the par value of
Baht 1.00 to reserve for the exercise of the Warrants No.l (RICHY-W 1) which are issued and offered (o the

existing shareholders who subscribe and are allotied the new shares by way of rights issue.

23 Consider the allotment of capital increase ordinary shares not more than 157,079,996 shares at the par value of
Baht 1.00 to reserve for the cxercise of the Warmants No.2 (RICHY-W2) which are issued and offered 1o the

existing shareholders who subscribe and are allotied the new shares by way of rights issue.

2.4  Consider the allotment of capital increase ordinary shares not more than 32,724,999 shares at the par value of Baht

1.00 1o reserve the stock dividend.
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. The warrants to purchase the ordinary shares ofthe  Company No.l (RICHY-W1) details of warrani are as follows;

Type of Securitics

Type ol Warrants

MNumber of Warrants

Number of Capital Increase
Ordinary Shares Reserved for
the Exercise of Right under

Warrants

Offering Method

Offering Price

Term of Warrants

Issue Date

Maturity Date of Warrants

Exercise Ratio

Exercise Price

Warrants to purchase the ordinary shares of Richy Place 2002 Public
Company Limited No. | to be allotted to existing ordinary sharcholders of
the Company who subscribe for the capital increase ordinary shares of the
Company proporticnately o their shareholding.

In named and transferable certificates

157,079,996 units

157,079,996 Shares (at a par value of Baht 1.00} and after including the
number of Reserve shares that the Company reserves for the excreise of
rights under the converible debentures and warranis offered for sale,
represent 33.33 pereent of the otal issued shares of the Company after the
capital increase with no remaining shares from the right offering.

Allotting to the existing ordinary shareholders of the Company who
subscribe for the capital increase ordinary shares of the Company
proportionately 1o their sharcholding at the ratio of | new ordinary shares
per 1 unit of warrants (any fraction shall be discarded by the Board
of dircctors or persons entrusied by the Board of Directors) and
determining the date of which the recorded ordinary sharcholders arc
entitled 1o be allotted the Warrant No. 1 on May 4, 2017, and the date on
which the name list of sharcholders is compiled under Section 225 of
the Securities and Exchange Act B.C, 1992 (as amended} by closing the
share register book (o suspend share transfers to be on May §, 2017,

Bath 0.00 per unit (0 Baht}

2 years from the Issue Date of the Warranis,

July 3, 2017

July 2, 2018

| unit of warrants for | ordinary share, unless the exercise ratio is adjusted
pursuant to the conditions of the rights adjustment,

The exercise price of the Warrants is al Baht 1.80 per share (at a par value
Baht 1.00 per share), unless the exercise ratio is adjusied pursuant to the

conditions ol the rights adjustment.



Excrcise Period and Period for
the MNotification of the Intention

o Exercise the Right

Registrar
Secondary Market of the
Warrants
Secondary Market of the
Ordinary shares from the

Exercise of Righis

Warrant Holders shall be entitled 1o exercise their rights under Warrants on
the last Business Day of every January and July of cach year throughout
the term of the Warranis. The first Exercise Date shall be July 31, 2017
and the Last Exercise Date shall be the date of the 2 nd anniversary
from the lssue Date, which is falling on July 2, 2019, (In the event
that the Last Exercise Date is on the Company’s holiday, the Last Exercise
Date shall be rescheduled to the last Business Day before the Last Exercise
Date).

The Warrant Holders shall declare the intention to exercise the rights
within 5 Business Days prior to each Exercise Date. From 9.00 hrs. 1o
16.00 hrs,, Except for the last exercise period, The Warrant Holders shall
declare the intention 1o exercise the rights within 15 days prior to the
last Exercisc Date.

Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited

The Company shall apply for a listing of the Warrants on the Stock
Exchange of Thailand (SET).

The Company shall apply for a listing of the ordinary shares from
the exercise of rights under the Warranis on the Stock Exchange of

Thailand (SET).
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2. The warranis to purchase the ordinary shares of the  Compeny No.2{RICHY-W2) details of warrant are as follows

Type of Securitics

Type of Warrants

Number of Warrants

Number of Capital Increase
Ordinary Shares Reserved for
the Exercise of Right under

Warranis

Offering Method

Offering Price

Term of Warrants

Issue Date

Maturity Date of Warrants

Exereise Ratio

Exercise Price

Warrants to purchase the ordinary shares of Richy Place 2002 Public
Company Limited No. 2 1o be allotted 1o existing ordinary sharcholders of’
the Company who subscribie for the capital increase ordinary shares of the
Company proportionately o their shareholding,

In named and transferable certificates

157,079,996 units

157,079,996 Shares (at a par value of Baht 1.00) and after including the
number of Reserve sharcs that the Company reserves for the exercise of
rights under the converlible debentures and warrants offered for sale,
represent 33.33 percent of the 1otal issued shares of the Company afler the
capital increase with no remaining shares from the right offering.

Allotting 1o the existing ordinary sharcholders of the Company who
subscribe for the capital increase ordinary shares of the Company
praportionately to their shareholding at the ratio of | new ordinary shares
per 1 unit of warrants (any fraction shall be discarded by the Board
of Directors or persons entrusted by the Board of Directors) and determining
the date of which the rccorded ordinary sharcholders are entitled 0 be
allotted the Warrant No. | on May 4,.2017, and the date on which the name
list of sharcholders is compiled under Section 225 of the Securitics
and Exchange Act B.C. 1992 (as amended) by closing the share register book
to suspend share transfers to be on May 5,2017,

Bath 0.00 per unit (0 Baht}

3 years from the |ssue Date of the Warranis.

July 3,2017

July 2,2020

1 unit of warrants for | ordinary share, unless the exercise ratio is adjusted
Pursuant to the conditions of the rights adjustment.

The exercise price of the Warranis is at Baht 2.75 per share (al a par value
Baht 1.00 per share), unless the exercise ratio is adjusted pursuant 1o the

Conditions of the rights adjustment.



Exercise Period and Period for : Warrant Holders shall be entitled to exercise their rights under Warrants on

the Motification of the Intention the last Business Day of every January and July of each year throughout the

o Exercise the Right term of the Warrants, The first Exercise Date shall be July 31, 2017 and
the Last Excrcise Date shall be the date of the 3 nd anniversary from
the Issue Date, which is falling on July 2, 2020. {In the event that the
Last Exercise Date is on the Company's holiday, the Last Exercise Date shall
be rescheduled to the last Business Day before the Last Exercise Date.) The
Warrant Holders shall declare the intention to exercise the rights within 5
Business Days prior to each Exercise Date. From 9.00 hrs. to 16.00 hrs,,
Except for the last exercise period, The Warrant Holders shall declare the

intention to exercise the rights within 15 days prior to the Last Exercisc

Date.
Registrar + Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited.
Secondary Market of the : The Company shall apply for a listing of the Warrants on the Stock
Warranis Exchange of Thailand {SET).
Secondary Market of the . The Company shall apply for a listing of the ordinary shares from the
Ordinary shares from the exercise of rights under the Warrants on the Stock Exchange of Thailand

Exercise of Rights (SET).
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20. DIVIDEND

21.

22,

2016
At the Annual General Mecting of Sharcholders of 2016 held on April 25, 2016, The sharchalders has approved the Profil

Allocation and Dividend payment from the 2015 operation by the legal reserve of 1,981,000 Baht and approved the dividend
payment of 0.055 Bah per share amount 43,196,700 Baht dividend paid on May 25, 2016.
2017

Al the meeting of shareholding on April 25, 2017 has approved the allocation of profits derived from operational results for the
year 2016 for cash dividend and stock dividend payments approximately Baht 37,699,199 (or approx. 397.41 % of net profit),

details as follows,
1. Cash dividend payment al the rate Baht 0.0063 per share (Totaling Baht 4,974,200).

2. Stock dividend will be paid ordinary shares at the ratio of 24 existing ordinary shares (o 1 newly issued ordinary
share (Ordinary shares : 785,399 982 sharcs). The par value of the newly issued ordinary sharc is Baht | per share,
totaling Baht 32,724 999 shares or equivalent to Baht 0.0417 per share. In case that any sharcholder holds the
indivisible share remaining after such allocation, cash will be paid instead of the siock dividend al the rate of Baht

(.0417 per share. And the dividend payment date will be on May 25, 2017.

LEGAL RESERVE

Section 116 of the Public Companies Act B.C. 1992 requires that a company shall allocate not less than 3% of its annual net
profit, less any accumulated losses brought forward, to a reserve account (“legal reserve™), until this account reaches an amount

not less than 10% of the registered authorized capital. The legal reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

EROVIDENT FUND

The Company and its stalf have established a contribulory Provident Fund. This Provident Fund has already been registered
under the Provident Fund Act, B.C. 1987. Under the Fund plan, staff has to contribute to the fund at the specific rate and will

be entitled to reecive the fund when staff is no longer member in accordance with regulation of the fund.
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3. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Construclion costs

Changes in costs of property development
Salaries, wages and other employee benefits
Depreciation and amortization

Rental expense

Sale promotion cxpenses

Oflice expenses

Other taxes and duties

Specific business lax

24, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

24,1 Risk management

(Unit : Baha)

Consolidated Separate
- For the yc; cn_d_c; For the years ended
31 December B 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
1,622,685,770 1,420,826,197 1,592,161,690 1,085,460,462
844,468,572 1,065,875 488 844,468,572 730,509,753
59,486,370 41,159,726 58,717,879 40,793,041
13,965,462 7,847,728 13,956,750 7,847,728
4,071,992 2,794,040 2,100,625 2,794,040
84,517,383 71,058,012 81,859,365 71,058,012
4,361,173 3,376,548 3,285,940 3,329,378
2,394,757 1,717,336 2,170,431 1,715,208
46,001,293 17,934,337 46,001,293 17,934,337

The Company and subsidiary do not issue derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purpose.

24.2 Interest rates risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that interest rates may change in the future which will affect the results of the company and

subsidiary’s operations and their cash flows. The Company and subsidiary have assets and liabilities with interest rate

risk as follows :

Consolidated

Amount {Baht)

Interest Rate (%)

December 31,2017 December 31,2016 December 31,2017 December 31,2016

Financi iabilit
Bill of exchange
Loan form financial Institution

Bond

- 620,000,000
1,932,438,814 1,719,932, 727

1,455,145,318 1, 1400, 000,000

Total

3,387,584,152 3479932727

4.30 - 4.40
515-7.90 5.10-7.90
5.10-6.25 5.10-5.60
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Separale

Amount (Baht) Interest Rate (%)

December 31,2017 December 31,2016 December 31,2017 December 31, 2016

Bill of exchange - 620,000,000 - 4.30-4.40
Laan form financial Institution 1,753,926,139 1,719.932,727 5.275-7.90 5.10-7.590
Bond 1.455,145,338 1, 140,000,000 5.10-6.25 5.10-5.60
Total 3,209,071, 477 3479932727

24.3 Non - compliance risk

Non-compliance risk is the risk that customers do not comply with condition in purchase and sale agreements that may
cause damages to the Company. Management believes that the Company does not have significant risk in respect of non-
compliance since the Company holds policy to hedge risk by arranging down payment at the rates of 10% of purchase
and sale agreement and ownership is transferred to customers when payments are completed in accordance with such

dgrecments,
24.4 Exchange rate risk

The Company and subsidiary have no exposure to the forcign exchange risk because they have not had the business

transactions which are foreign currency exchange.
24.5 Fair value

The financial assets and liabilities are mainly classified as short term. Long-term loans from commercial banks bear
interest at the market rates, The management believes that book values of such financial assets and liabilities are not

significantly different from fair valucs.



25. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The group of Company has carries on business in the single geographic arca in Thailand. The business segment i

property development for sale is as follow:

Sale
Cost of zale
Giross margin

Met profit

Sale
Cost of sale
Gross margin

Met profit

{Unit : Million Baht)

Consalidated

for the years ended 31 December

High rise Low rise Others Total
2017 2016 2007 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
1,233.97 452.01 5768 LG5 22.76 10.52 1,314.41 55318
RI3.30 28587 3735 6388 20.35 2.29 &7T1.00 159.04
420.67 166,14 20.33 26.77 241 1.23 443.41 194.14
132.92 926
(Unit : Million Baht)
Separale
for the vears ended 31 December
High rise Low rise Others Total
017 2016 2m? 2016 2007 2016 2017 2016
1,233.97 45201 57.68 91.65 2276 10.52 1,314.41 551.18
813.30 285.87 37.35 G388 2035 9.29 £71.00 359.04
42067 166.14 20.33 26.77 241 1.23 443.41 194,14
139.29 9.68
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26. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
Basic earnings (loss) per share

The calculations of basic carnings (loss) per share for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 20 16 are as Tollow were based
an the profit (loss) for the period attributable to equity holders of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary

shares vutstanding during the period after adjusting for the effeets of all dilutive potential ordinary shares as follows:

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follow:
{Thousand Baht / Thousand Share)

Consolidated Separate
2017 2016 m7 2016
Profit {loss) attributable 10 equity holders of the Company (Basic) 132915 9,256 139,934 0685
Number of common shares as at beginning 785,400 785,400 TH5,400 783,400
Effected of share issued during the year 189,804 - 189,804 -
Weighted average number of common shares —'}?5,1{}4 T85,400 075,204 785,400
Basic earnings (loss) per share (Baht/Shares) 0.136 0.012 0.143 0.012

Diluted earnings (loss) per share

The calculations of diluted earings (loss) per share for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follow: were
based on the profit (loss) for the period atiributable to equity holders of the Company and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive potential erdinary shares as follows:

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follow:
{Thousand Baht / Thousand Share}

Consolidated Separate
2017 2016 2017 2016
Profit (loss) anributable 1o equity holders of the Company (Basic) 132,915 9,256 139,934 9,685
MNumber of common shares as at beginning TR5400 785,400 785,400 785,400
Effected of share issued during the year 180,204 E 189,804 -
Weighted average number of common shares 975,204 TE5 400 975,204 785,400
Diluted basic eamings (loss) per share (Bah/Shares) (136 0.012 0.143 0012

The company has nol calculated the diluted earings per share for year-ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, due to the fair value

of common share has the lower price than the price of right to purchase common shares .



7. COMMITMENTS

27.1 As at December 31, 2017 group of Company have commitments agreement as follow:

(Unit : Million Babt}

Consolidated

Contract Amount Payment Outstanding
Construction agreement 1,146.00 (987.00} 159.00
Purchase and sale lands agreement 277.00 (40.00) 237.00

{(Unit : Million Baht)
Separate

Contract Amount Payment Outstanding
Construction agreement 1,141.00 {987.00) 154.00
Purchase and sale lands agreement 277.00 (40.00) 237.00

7.2 As al December 31, 2017 group of Company have commitments for payment of operating lease as fallow:

{Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Scparale
Within
| year 1,640.29 1,640.29
Ower | year 1,913.67 1,913.67
Total 3,553.96 3,553.96

28, BANK GUARANTEE

As al Decemberr 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Company group has commitment in respect of bank guarantee for
public utilities project to a government institute in amount of Baht 41.28 million baht and 41,14 million baht, respectively for

commitments under normal business,
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29. LITIGATION

During 2007, the Company was sued 10 be the Co-defendant with three others to pay the damage totalling Baht 43.75 million.
On April 29, 2011, the Court of First Instance ordered the Company to pay for damages amounting to Baht | million with
interest rate at 7.5% per annum from November 29, 2008 up to the payment date. On September 6, 2012, the Appeal Court
ordered the Company to place collateral for the amount that would pay according to the judgment of the Court of First
Instance plus additional interest for next 2 years from order date which Deves Insurance Co., Lid who pledged the guarantec.
The Company believes that there is no any damage from such case since the Co-defendant No.1 provided the indemnity letter

to the plaintiff instead on behalf of the Company on April 1, 2011,

On Oclober 8, 2013, the Court of Appeal judged the Company and Co-defendant No.2 to pay Baht 2,000,000 to the plaintiff
and the Co-defendant No.3 to jointly pay Baht 900,000, The petition of this case is in the process of filing with the Supreme
Court. The Company believes that there is no any damage from such case because the Company can reimburse any damages

from Co-defendant No. 2 in accordance with construction agreement.

30. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

il.
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The primary objectives of the Company’s and subsidiaries’ capital management are to maintain their abilities to continue as a

going concern and to maintain an appropriate capital siruciure.

As al December 31, 2017, debt to equity ratio in the consolidated financial statements is 2.25 : 1 (Separate financial

statements: Debi-to-equity ratio is 2.15: 1).

DEBENTURES
Resolved to propose to the Extra - Ordinary Sharcholders’ Meeting of 2016 on April 25, 2016 to consider the issuance and

offer of debentures with an aggregate principal amount, at any time, not is exceeding Bath of 3,000 million. By assign
authority to Chiel Executive to determine or change condition and deiails that involve with issue and offer for selling for
each/for each time and assign authority to process the necessary things that involve 1o issue and sell these bonds o complete by
the law.

The Company has issued bond for selling with limit to the instilution’s investors arfand the major investors for seven limes
with amount 2,002,300,000 Baht (Two thousand two million and three hundred baht)se still have amount for issue the bonds

1o 997,700,000 Baht (Nine hundred nighty seven and seven hundred baht),

EVEN AFTER FINANCIAL STATEMENT
Whereas Richy Place 2002 Public Company Limited held the Board of Directors Mecting No. 1/2018 on 27 February 2018 and

the Mecting has passed the following resolutions :

|. Approved the profit allocation and dividend payment from the 2017 operation, which will be described the following:

1.1 The Company has allocated profit as statutory reserve according 1o the related law. The Company also raised

additional reserve of 7,043,000 Baht as the minimum requirement mandated by law.



1.2 To pay the dividend in cash and in stock of 2017 operation in the amount of 78,141,671.35 Baht or at the rate of
0.08013 Baht per share, which will be described the following.
1.2.1 Paid by cash at the rate of 0.0087 Baht per share in the amount not exceed 8,484,271.35 Baht.
1.2.2 Paid by stock dividend 1o the existing shareholders of the company in ratio 14 existing shares for | new stock
dividend for the dividend amount of 975,203,604 total stick dividend is 69,657 400 shares at the par value of Baht |
per share, the total value shall not exceed 69,657,400 Baht or equivalent ta 0.07143 Baht per share.
In case any shareholder hold the indivisible share remaining after such allocation, cash will be paid instead of the
stock dividend at the rate of Baht 0.07143 per share
In case any shareholder has a fraction of shares remaining after the allocation of stock dividend will paid in cash al
Baht 0.07143 per share,
In addition, The record date for the right to receive the dividend is expected to be on the 3" May 2018 and the
closure of the sharcholder registers will be on the 4" May 2018. Finally, the dividend payment will be made on 24"
May 2018.

2. Concluded for the Annual General Mecting of sharcholders for the year 2018 to consider the and approve the
increase of the Company's registered capital from 1,289,364,969 Baht to the amount of 1,381,462,369 Baht by
issuing new ordinary shares of 92,097,400 share with a par value of 1,00 Bah! each as dividend payment as a form of
shares. A to uphold the adjustment of the right of the warrant of RICHY-W1 and RICHY-W2 and to adjust the
amendment of Clause of 4 of the Company’s Memorandum of Association to be in line with the increase of the

registered capitai of the Company.

3. The resolution ta propase to the Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders 2018 to consider and approve the allotment

ol 92,097,400 new ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 1.00 per share, with details as follows:

3.1 To consider the allotment of new ordinary shares not exceed the amount of 69,657,400 shares with a par value of
Baht 1.00 each 1o support the stock dividend payment.
3.2 To consider the allotment of new ordinary shares not exceeding the amount of 22,440,000 shares with par value of

Baht 1.00 per share to accommodate the adjustment of the exercise ratio of warrants RICHY-W1 and RICHY-W2.

33, RECLASSIFICATION

Certain transactions in the financial statement for period 2017 have been reclassified in accordance with the Notification of
the Department of Business Development dated October 11, 2017 regarding “The Brief Particulars in the Financial Statement
B.C.2017.

34, APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors on February 27, 2018.



